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JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED
b ‘

: STRATEGIC REPORT -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

BUSINESS REVIEW , o ' ‘ y

The Company has continuéd to be a nominee shareholder company and has not traded in the year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The risks and uncertainties for the Company, as a nominee, are considered to be negligible.
. FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS '

‘The Company has not traded in the year and is not considered to have key performance indicators.

This report Was approved by tﬁe board on 17 October 2022 and sig‘ned on its behalf. ~

Sunil Sheth .
SumIP Sheth ...........................
Director
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JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED

. DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.
- Directors’ responsibilities statement o , .

The directors are responsible for preparing the Stratégic Report, the Directors' Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulatlons

Company law requires 'the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’. Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period..

In preparlng these financial statements, the drrectors are required to:

) select suitable accounting policies for the Company's financial statements and then apply them
) consistently; ;

. make ]udgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. - state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures

. disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e - prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
‘ Company will continue in business."

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and otherirregularities.

Prmcrpal actlwty
' The Company s principal activity is that of a nominee company.

Going Concern

The Directors have reviewed the Company's forecasts, concluding that the going concern basis remains an
.appropriate ‘basis’ of preparation for these financial statements given the likely cash flows 12 months from the
date of signing this report. .

Directors

The directors who served during the year were: ) - - .
_Sunil P Sheth |

Jean C Loutreuil
Dipti Dhingra
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'JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED

> DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors‘ Report is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as the director is aware; there is no relevant audit mformatlon of which the Company's audltors are
unaware, and . .
e the director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.
Post oalance sheet events ' | |
« There have been no sigoiﬁcant 'events affecting tha Company sinco the year end.
AudAitor:'s |

-The auditors, Haysmacrntyre LLP will be proposed for reappomtment in accordance with section 485 of the
_ Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the board on 17 October 2022 and signed on its behalf:

Sunil Sheth

Sunil P Sheth
Director
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JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED

" INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited (the '‘Company’) for the year
ended 31 -March 2022, which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, the Statement of Financial Position and the
related notes, incIuding a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affalrs as at 31 March 2022 and of its result for the
year then ended;
. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
‘appropriate to provide a ba5|s for our opinion.

’

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the goi.ng concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or .
conditions that, individually or collectrvely may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sectlons of this report.
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JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in“our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. |f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
) the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified matenal misstatements in the Strateglc Report or the Directors' Report.

. We have nothlng to report in-respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: .

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
“ received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accountlng records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

. Responsibilities of directors
A

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 2, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. ,
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JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

" Auditors’ I'esponsibilities for the audit of the finahcial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material' misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error. and are considered material if, ‘individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expectéd to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

We evaluated management'’s incentives and opportunmes for fraudulent manlpulatlon of the financial statements
(including the risk of override of ‘controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting
inappropriate journal entries. o

Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

« Discussions with management including consideration of known or suspected instances of non- compliance
with laws and regulation and fraud,

« Evaluating management'’s controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities; and

« Identifying and testing risky or unusual journals;

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description. forms part of our
Auditors' Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solelyto the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

avect Cpden
Gareth Ogden (Senior StaIutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of
~ Haysmacintyre LLP

Statutory Auditors

10 Queen Street Place
London
EC4R 1AG

17 October 2022 -
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JENSONV & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

"The Company has not traded during the year or the preceding financial year. During these periods, the
Company received no income and incurred no expenditure and therefore made neither profit or loss.
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JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED
~ REGISTERED NUMBER:02226019

STATEMENT .OF FINANCIAL POSITION
"AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

CURRENT ASSETS -

Debtors: ambunts falling due within one year .

Cash at bank and in hand

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES . '

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Called up share capital

' )

Note

2022
£
697
303
1,000
1,000
1,000
1,000

1,000

2021

1,000

1,000
1,000
1,000

1,000.
1,000

. 3 . . ‘
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on

- 17 October 2022.

Sunil Sheth

Sunil P Sheth
Director '

’

The notes on pages 9 to 11 form part of these financial Statements.
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JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED |

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Jenson & Nicholson (Asia) Limited (registered number 02226019) is a private conriparry limited by shares,
incorporated in the UK, and registered in England & Wales. Its registered office is 10 Queen Street Place,
London, EC4R 1AG. o

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21

‘BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared‘ under the historical cost convention unless otherwise

* specified within these accounting policies and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102,

2.2

the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland and the .
Companies Act 2006.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain

- critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in applying the

Company's accounting policies (see note 4).
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARD 102 - REDUCED DISCLOSURE EXEMPTIONS
The Company. has taken advantage of the following disclosure exerr]ptions in 'preparing these

financial 'statements, as permitted by the FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland":

e the requirements of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

2.3

2.4

. “the requirements of Section 3 Financial Statement Presentation paragraph 3.17(d).

This information |e included in the consolidated flnanC|el statements of UK Paints India Limited as at
31 March 2022 and these financial statements may be obtalned from the Reglstrar of Companies in
India, on the payment of the appropriate fee.

EXEMPTION FROM PREPARING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company is a parent Company that is also a subsidiary included in the consolidated financial
statements of its ultimate parent undertaking established under the law of a non-EEA state and is
therefore exempt from the requirement to prepare consolldated financial statements under section
401 of the Companies Act 2006.

GOING CONCERN
The Directors have reviewed the Company's forecasts, concluding that the going cencern basis

remains an appropriate basis of preparation for these financial statements given the likely cash flows
12 months from the date of signing this report. -
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JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED

/

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
Fl.rnctional end presentation currency

- The Company's functional currency is USD. This differs from the presentational currency which is
GBP. The Directors consider the Company's functronal currency to be USD as this is the currency in
which the majority of the Company's cash recelpts and payments are processed. .

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency usrng the spot exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

At each .period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

2.6 DEBTORS

Short-term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment. Loans receivable are
measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

3. STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The cempany is a registered holder of 140,656,782 ordinary shares of RS2 each in Berger Paints India
‘Limited which are held as nominee for its parent company, BJN Holdings (I) Limited.

The company did not trade during the period and all its expenses are borne by the parent company.

There were no employees during the year. The Company's Directors oversee governance of the
Company.

4. JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying its accounting policies, the company is required to make certain estimates,

~ judgements and assumptions that-it believes are reasonable based on the information available: These
judgements, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenses recognised durlng the reporting periods
presented. .

On an ongoing basis, the company evaluates its estimates using historical experience, consultation with

. experts and other methods considered reasonable in the particular circumstances. Actual results may
differ significantly from the estimates, the effect of whlch is recognised in the perlod in which the facts that
give rise to the revision become known.

There were no accounting estimates or Judgements required in the preparation of these financial
statements under FRS102. ’
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JENSON & NICHOLSON (ASIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

DEBTORS

2022 2021 -
£ £
Amounts owed by QroUp undertakings : : 697 : 1,000
- L 697 1,000
SHARE CAPITAL
‘ 2022 . 2021
£ £
Allotted, called up and fully paid . o
2 (2021 - 2) Ordinary shares shares of £1.00 each L ‘ 2 : 2
998 (2021 - 998) 10% Non-cumulative Preference shares shares of £1 00
each - 998 998

1,000 1,000

CONTROLLING PARTY

UK Paints (India) Private Limited, registered in India, is regarded by the directors as being the Companys
ultimate parent company and controlling party.

" The company is exempt from preparing group accounts as its accounts are included in the consolidated
accounts of U.K. Paints (India) Private Limited, registered in’India.

.
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J C. BHALLA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

. BRANCH OFFICE : B-5, SECTOR-6, NOIDA - 201 301 (U.P.)
TEL. : 491 - 120 - 4241000, FAX : +91-120-4241007
. E-MAIL : taxaid@jcbhalla.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

' To the Members of UK. Paints (Indla) Private Limited

'Report on the Audit of the Consolxdated Financial Statements -

Opinion.

. We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of U.K. Paints

(India) Private Limited (“the Company”) (“hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company”)
its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group’)
its associates and jointly controlled entities, comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement for
Cash Flow for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statement including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereiriafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in

- conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read -

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principle generally accepted in India, of the state of the affairs of the Group,
its associates and jointly controlled entities as at March 31, 2022, its consolidated profit and
total comprehensive income, its consolidated ‘statement of changes in equity and its
consolidated cash ﬂows for the year ended on that date. '

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its associates and jointly
‘controlled entities in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to prov1de a basis for our audit opinion on the.
consolidated fmanc1al statements.

HEAD OFFICE : B-17, Maharani Bagh, New Delhi - 110065



SNSRI e 2 oAttt L e o : ey

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to:

Refer to Note 43 regarding unrealized profit on the closing stock, as in the absence of
~‘quantification of the figures we are unable to comment on‘its impact on consohdated
_earmngs ' :

Refer Note'39 and 40 for the impact of dlfferences in accountmg pohc1es

Refer to Note 36(g) regardmg certain unquoted investments valued at cost only instead of
fair. valuation, however, in the view of management the 1mpact of the same on .the
consolidated financials are not material.

Key Audit Matters

* Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most -
' significance in our audit of the consolidated finaricial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate -
‘opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed
the matter is provided in that context. We have determined the matters described below to be
‘the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material -
misstatement of the consolidated financial statéments. The results of audit procedures -

-~ performed by us.and by other auditors of components not audited by us, as reported by them

in their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including those procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
- accompanying consolidated financial statements matters are those miatters that, in our
‘professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters descrlbed below
" to be the key aud1t matters to be commumcated in our report. ‘

Sr. Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Resp_ohse
No., '

1 Revenue Recogmtlon ‘

the control of goods and/or services _ - :
‘are transferred to the customer at an | 1) We read and evaluated the Group’s revenue
amount that reflects . the net recognition . policy and assessed its
consideration,, ‘which the Group compliance in terms of Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue
| expects to receive for those goods from contracts with customers X

and/or services from customers in |
accordance with the terms of the

/| The Group recognizes revenues when | Our audit pr‘ocedufes j.ncliided the foHoWing: :

2) We’ assesse‘d the design and tested the’

price, the Group considers the effects

contracts. In determining the -sales |

operating effectiveness of internal controls
related to sales’ and  applicable

of applicable rebates and discounts

" rebates/discounts.



' goodw111
consolidated financial statements of |
one of the subsidiaries. These are |

Goodwill

The Group has goodwill on acqulsltlon '

in consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022,
including a significant amount of such
recognized® in = the

allocated to Cash Generating Units

(CGUs) and are tested annually for |

| impairment. This testing is done by

computing. the value in use based on

| discounted cash flow method. The |
so determined = is
compared with the carrymg values

value in use

and if there is a deficit, an impairment

loss is recognized. The inpuits to the |

impairment testing model which have
the most significant impact on the

Projected revenue growth, operating
\argins, and operating cashflows; -
table long-term growth rates till

CGU'’s recoverable value include: -

Sr. | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response
‘| No. e ' ‘
(variable consideration). The terms of ]
sales ' arrangements, including the | 3) We performed a test for a sample of sales
timing of the transfer of control, based transactions by comparing the underlying
on the terms of the relevant contract sales invoices, sales orders, and other related
and the nature of discount and rebates documents to  assess that revenue is
arrangements, create complexities that recognized on a transfer of control to the
require judgment in determining sales customer in accordance Wlth the terms of the
revenues. Considering the above contract.
factors and the risk associated with .
revenue - recogmhon, we have | 4) We tested on a sample basis: rebates and
determined the same to be a key audit’| discount schemes as approved by the
matter. management to assess its accounting. For’
' the samples selected, we also compared that
the actual rebates and discounts recognized
in respect of particular schemes do not
exceed their approved amounts.

5) We tested on a sample basis, that revenue
has been recognized in the: proper period
with reference to the supporting documents
including confirmations from customers.

6) We read and assessed the relevant
disclosures made in the consolidated Ind AS |.

, . financial statements. :
2 Assessment  of Im'pairment ~of ‘

Our audit procedures included the following:

1) Evaluated the design and implementation of |
key internal financial controls in relation to
impairment assessment and tested the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

2) In respect of the goodwill recognized in the

consolidated financial -statements of a
. subsidiary, we made enquiries on audit |’
procedures performed by the component
‘auditor. The audit procedures carried out by
the component . auditor of the. subsidiary |-
include. the following: a) Evaluated the |
methodology applied by the subsidiary in
determining the CGUs to which goodwill is
_allocated. b) Verified the recoverable '
amount ascertained by the management of
the subsidiary under Discounted Cash Flow |
method based on business ‘projection and |-
~ valuation’ assumphons ~ ¢) Discussed

potential - changes in key drivers as-




Sr. | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

No. .
perpetuity; arid - Discount rates| compared to the previous year/actual
Considering that the impairment| . performance with the management of the
"assessment requires consideration of company to verify the .inputs and
above inputs that involve 'signiﬁca{nt .assumptions used inthe cash flow forecasts.
| management judgement, this _hasfbeen
identified as a key audit matter 3) In respect of the goodwill related to

companies other than the above step-down
subsidiary; we _have performed the
following. procedures: a)  Evaluated
management’s key assumptions in respect |.
of future sales growth rate, operating cash
flows, perpetuity growth rate and discount .
rate used in impairment assessment. b)
Involved “specialists to assist us in the
evaluation of impairment exerc1se carried
out by the management.

4) We performed a sensitivity analysis to
determine the impact of changes in the key.
assumptions. -

A 5) We read and assessed the disclosures made
in the - consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Information other than the Consolidated’ Financial Statements and Audrtor’s Report
thereon S ! :

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
- of its report (hereinafter called as “Board Report”) which comprises various information
" ‘required under section 134(3) of the: Companies Act 2013 but does not include the consolidated
 financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon

"Our opn‘uon on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Board Report and we -
“do not express any form of assurance conclusron thereon

In cormec:tiorr with our audit 'of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is'to
read the Board Report and in doing so, consider whether the Board Report is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtamed during the
course of our audit or otherw1se appears to be materrally rmsstated : '

If based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement in
. this Board Report we are req\nred to report that fact. We have nothmg to report in this regard




Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of.the requirement of -
the Act that give a true and fair view. of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its associates and jointly
controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India .
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associates, Joint
ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting recotds in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associates and jointly
controlled entities and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; makmg judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and .are free from
-material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated Ind' AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesald .
In preparmg the consohdated financial statements, the respechve Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group, its associates and joint venture are responsible for assessing
the ability of the respective companies to continue as a going concern,. disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
- unless management either intends to liquidate the respec’uve company or to cease operauons
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies mcluded in the group and its associates
and jointly controlled entities are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group and its associates and joint venture

Auditorl’s R,es,poxi_sibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financie-l Statement_s

Our Objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
_ error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatément when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or.
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic ‘decision of users taken on the ba51s of these consohdated
- financial statements. :

As part of an audlt in accordance with SAs, we exercise professmnal ]udgment and maintain
professwnal skephasm throughout the audit. We also : :




basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material rrusstatement resulting from fraud
is-higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
mtentlonal omissions, nmsrepresentatlons, or the overnd_e of internal control.

- Obtainan understanding of internal fmanc1a1 control relevant to the aud1t in order to de51gn
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the companies included -

" in the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities which is a company
incorporated in India has adequate internal fmanc1a1 controls system in place and the
operatmg effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
- accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropnateness of management s use of the gomg concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability. of the
companies mcluded in Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue

‘as a going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusion is
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the companies included in Group and its associates and
jointly controlled entities to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlymg transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentatlon '

- Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
" entities or business activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial information we have
audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the audit of the financial
- statements of such entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by other. auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the aud1ts carr1ed out
by them. We remam solely respon51ble for our audlt oplmon

Materlahty is the magmtude of misstatements in the consolidated fmanc1a1 statement that
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decision of a reasonably
" knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and”qualitative factor in (i) planning the scope of our audit work; and (ii) to

evaluate the effect of any 1dent1f1ed rmsstatement in the financial statements o

s communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
ritities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the
dent auditors regardmg, among other ‘matters, the planned scope : and timing of the



audit and 31gn1f1cant audit findings, mcludmg any significant deficiencies in mtemal control
that we identify during our audit. '

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our mdependence '
and where apphcable, related safeg'uards

Other Matter

- 1. We did not audit the financial statements and other information of twelve (12):
subsidiaries (including 5 step down subsidiaries) (Note: consolidated Berger Paints India
Limited Financials which comprises of its direct & Indirect subsidiaries and Joint ventures
entities is considered as a single entity in our counting), whose Ind AS financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs.18909.57 crores and net assets of Rs.10720.94 crores as at March 31,
2022, total revenue of Rs.8188.53 crores and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.175.30 crores
. for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the group’s share of net loss of
Rs.1.75 Crores in respect of four associates, whose financial statements, and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors and whose reports have been furnished
to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in
so far as it relates to the amounts and- disclosures included in respect of these above-
mentioned entities and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the
Act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid above mentioned entities, is based solely on the
reports of the other authors : '

Some of these subsidjaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other
financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other
auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective
. contries. The Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such
subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited
these conversion adjustments made by the Company’s management: Our opinion in so far
as it relates'to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based
on the report of other auditors and the conversion ad]ustments prepared. by the
; management of the Company which is- audlted by.us.

Further, three Indian subsidiaries are Non-Bankmg Finance Compames '(NBFC). Their
financial statements are audited by other auditors under Indian GAAP, but the company’s
management has prepared Ind AS complied financial statements after making necessary

- adjustments: We have audited these conversion adjustments made by thé company’s
management and our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of 'such
subsidiaries are based on the reports of other auditors issued under Indian GAAP and
conversion adjustment prepared by the respec’mve management of the companies which is

- audited by us. -

We did not audlt the financial statements of one direct subs1d1ary of UK. Paints (India).
' ate Lmuted whose fmanc1al staternents reflect total assets of Rs.36.58 crores and net

: s of Rs.4.29 crores as at March 31, 2022, total revenue of Rs. 4.44 crores and net cash
ro € A
untan% O

bws amounting to Rs. -0. 02 crores for the year ended on that date: The consohdated



.. Ind AS financial statements also include the group’s share of net loss of Rs.0.00 Crores in

respect of one associate, whose financial statements, and other financial information have

* not been audited by us. Our- opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements

insofar as it relates to the amhounts and disclosures included in respect of these entities, and
our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates
to the above-mentioned entities is based solely on such-unaudited financial statements as
certified by the management. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not material
to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS fmanc1a1 statements is not modified in respec:t of
the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other
auditors and.the financial statements and other financial mformanon certrfred by the
Management. : :

Report on Oth'er Legal and Regulatory Requirement

As required by Section143 (3) of the Act, based on our audlt on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of -
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, -
to the extent applicable, that: :

(a)

We/the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon-have sought and obtained.
all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our aud1t of the aforesaid consohdated Ind AS

" financial statements.

(b)

©

(d)

©
" Company as on March 31, 2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the
preparation of the aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept
so far as it appears- from our examination of those. books and reports of the other
auditors. '

The "Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit-and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and
the Consolidated Statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account mamtamed for the purpose of preparatron '
of Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

In our opinion, the aforesald consohdated Ind AS financial statements comply with the :
Accounting Standards. specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Compames
(Indran Accountmg Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended - :

On the basis of the written representahons received from the drrectors of the Holdmg

‘Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditors who are appointed under
‘Section 139 of the. Act, of its subsidiary companies and four direct associates
1ncorporated in India, none of the directors of these ‘respective’ companies,
ipcorporated in India is disqualified as'on March 31, 2022, from bemg appomted as
2 'rector in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act '



G
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With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS Financial
statements of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies, their jointly controlled
entities, and direct associates, wherever applicable incorporated in India, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure A” to this report. '

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures incorporated in India, the managerial

_remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022, has been paid/ provided by the Holding

Company, its subsidiaries, its associates, and joirit ventures incorporated in India to their

‘directors is in accordance with the provision of section 197 read with Schedule V to the ‘

Act, where apphcable

With respect to the other matters to be mcluded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our

" "opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us

based on the reports of other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other

- financial information of the subsmhanes, associates and joint ventures, as noted in the

‘Other matter paragraph:

i. Consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pendihg
litigations as at March 31, 2022, on the consolidated financial position of the Group,
associates & jointly controlled entities, Refer to Note 33(b) to the consolidated fmanc1a1
statements : - :

ii. The Group; jointly controlled entities and associate entities did not have any material
foreseeable losses in long-term contracts mcludmg derivative contracts as at March 31,
2022.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, jointly controlled entities and its associates incorporated in Indla during
the year ended March 31, 2022. “

iv. (a) The respective. Managements of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled
entities which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of. their
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested.(either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group or any of -
such jointly controlled entities or associates to or in any other peison or entity,"
‘mcludmg foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or derectly

~lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
. or on behalf of the Group or any of such jointly controlled entities or associates
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, secunty or the like on behalf
‘'of the Ultimate Benef1c1ar1es ‘

The respective Managements of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled
* entities which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements
' have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their

knowledge and belief, no funds (which are matenal either md1v1dually or in the ,



aggregate). have been received by the Group or any of such jointly controlled
entities or associates from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Group or any of such jointly controlled entities or associates shall duectly or
-indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
- whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneﬁcrarles”) or
prov1de any guarantée, securrty or the hke on behalf of the Ultimate Benef1c1ar1es

(c) Based on the audlt procedures that have been consrdered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the
~auditors of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures incorporated in India
Whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representatrons under sub—clause :
: (a) and (b) contain any misstatement.

A The final dividend pald by the Group, its joint venture, and associates where‘ :
apphcable mcorporated in Indja during the year in respect of the same declared - -
© for the j previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it
_ applies to payment of dividends. As stated in Note 17 to the consohdated fmanc1al
( statements, the Board of Directors of Berger Paints India Limited (Sub51d1ary
Company) has proposed a final dividend for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members of the Holdmg Company at the ensuing Annual General
‘Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordanice wrth section 123 of the Act to the
extent it applies to the declaration of d1v1dends :

In terms of the information and explanatrons sought by us and given by the I-Iolchnfr Company_
,_and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of the audlt and to
 the best of otir knowledge and behef and based on the consideration of the report of the -

respective auditor of the subsrchary cormpany, ]omt venture & assoc1ate company mcorporated v

~ inIndia, we state that: - : :

There are no quahﬁcatlons or adverse remarks by the respectwe auchtor in the Compames o
(Auditors Report) Order (CARO) report of the subsidiary’ companies, associates, and joint
ventures (mcorporated in India) included in the Consolidated Financial Statements. THeréfore,
~the requirement to report in terms of clause 3(xx1) of the Order is not apphcable to the Holdmg :
'Company : : ,

For] C Bhalla & Co.
- * Chartered Accountants =
- '-FumsRegwtratron No 0011 |

o (Ak}ul Bhalla)
" Parthner :
" Membership No. 505002 - .,
. UDIN:22. SoSoong w}ﬁn

Place NeW De1h1

= e 232




Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Fmancral Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
~ of the Compames Act 2013 (”the Act”) ' :

In con]uncnon with our audit of consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the company as

“of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of UK. Paints (India) Prxvate Limited, its subsidiary companies, its
associate companies and jointly controlled comparues which are mcorporated in India, as of
that date. :

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls-

The respecuve Board of Drrectors of the Holding Company, its Sub51d1ary Compames and its -

-associate and jointly controlled entities Incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

. These responsibilities include the design, irnplementation and majntenance of_ adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient -
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s pohcxes, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accou.ntmg records, and the timely preparahon of rehable fmancral
mforma‘aon as requlred under the Act. : :

Auditors Responsibility

Our’ respons1b111ty is to express an opinion on the Company s internal firiancial controls over |
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the-
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Audltmg, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescrlbed under section 143(10) of the Compames
-Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intefnal financial controls. Those Standards

-and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and -
: perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial . .
. controls over finantial reporting were established and mamtamed and if such controls T

E operated effectlvely in all matenal respects

Out audit mvolves performmg procedures to obtam audlt evrdence about the adequacy of the_ e
' internal financial controls system over financial _reporb.ng and. their operatmg effectiveness.” ..

-.Our audit, of internal financial -controls over financial reporting mcluded obtaining an e
: understandmg of mternal fmanc1a1 controls over fmanc1al reportlng, assessmg the nsk that a ..

l control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
nt, including- the assessment of the I‘lSkS of matenal rmsstaternent of the fmanc1al 3
ents, whether due to fraud or error ' : o R




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the .
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
_-sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company s internal
fmancral controls system over financial reporung - ' '

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporti_ng

A company's 1nterna1 financial control over fmancral reportmg is a process desrgned to
provide  reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finaricial reporting’ and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company's mternal fmancral control over fmanc1a1 reportmg'

includes those pohcres and procedures that :

1)) pertam to the mamtenance of records that in reasonable detarl accurately and faxrly
- reflect the transactions and dispositioris of the assets of the company ’ '

' (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactlons are recorded as necessary to perrrut the T
preparation of financial statements in accordance ‘with genera]ly accepted accounting
.principles, and.those recerpts and expénditures of the company ate bemg made only in .
accordance w1th aut_horrzatlons of mana_gement and drrectors of the cor_npany, and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regardmg the . preventmn or tn'nely detecuon of
"unauthorized acquisition, ise, or drsposmon of the company's assets that could have a
mater1a1 effect on the financial statements '

Inherent leltatrons of Internal Fmancral Controls over Flnancxal Reportmg S

Because of the mherent hrmtatxons of internal financial controls over fmancral reportmg

" including the possibility of collusion or improper ‘management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any.

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods aré
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over ‘financial reporting may become

'~ inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comphance with the pohcres

or procedures may deterrorate o : SR : : :

'opinion .
In our opmron to the best of our mformauon and accordmg to the explanatrons glven fo us,
- the holding Company, its subsrdrary companies, and’ their jointly controlled ‘entities & its

. associates which are’ mcorporated in India has, iri all matérial respects, an adequate internal

.~ financial controls system over. financial. reportmg and. such. internal financial controls over -
A -_ifmancral reportmg were operatmg effectrvely as at March 31, 2022, based on the mternall
. control over financial reporting Criteria established by the Company consrdermg the essential .’

" components of intétnal control stated in the Guidance Note oh ‘Audit of Internal’ Fmanc:lal:- o

Controls over Fma.ncral Reportmg 1ssued by the Instrtute of Chartered Accountants of Indra




Other Matters

Our aforesald ‘reports under Section’ 143(x 3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and ope1ahng

effectlveness of the mtemal fmanaal controls pver fmanc1al 1eport1ng ini so far as it relates to o

5 (five) Subsidiary Companies and 1 (one) Associate Company, which are compa.mes" s

incorporated in India, is based on the correspondmg reports of the’ aud1tors of such compames L
mcorporated in Incha :

For J. C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountanfs
Firm Regn. Nq.' 001111N .

Alkhil Bhalla)
Partner A .
Membership No. 505002 . o
UDIN: 29_505002_8‘0 V\/} HD3338§:

. Pla e: N wDelIu
fafsrm%ﬁ@ 292>




K PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

“'CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

- ¥in Crores

As at 31-Mar-2022

' |Particulars Notes As at 31-Mar-2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 4 . 2,050.58 1,934.48
Capital work-in-progress 4a 699.59 175.70
Investment Property 4b 58.48 58.21
Goodwill, e 830.68 833.68
1Other intangible assets 4d 19.27 13.20
Right-to-use assets 32 483.56 399.65
Intagible Asset under development - 4da 0.48 .
Investments accounted fot using the Equity Method 5 221.36 216.25
Finaricial assets
(a) Investments 5a 1,019.29 1,015.62
(b) Loans 5b 6.22 Lo
(c) Other financial assets 5¢ ©210.41 160.82
Deferred tax assets (Net) 13b 1.17 3.47
Othet non-current assets 6 153:96 122.99
Income tax assets (net) 126.50 98.82
’ ' ' ~ 5,881.55 5,032.89
Current Assets - ' 4
Inventories 7 2,761.43 | 1,923.17
‘{Financial assets A
(a) Investments 8a - 187.29 225.38
(b) Trade receivables 8b 1,240.16 1,193.23
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 8c . 950.51 764.26
(d) Bank balances other than (c) above "8d 261.83 _ 355.25
() Loans , 5b 169.29 166.03
(f) Other financial assets 5¢ 79.38 100.66 |.
Other current assets 6 - 249.06 - 165.04)
5,898.95 4,893.02
Total Assets 11,780.50 9,925.91
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES '
Equity shate capital 9 2.53 2.53
Other equity o 10 6,510.44 5,666.47 |
Equity attributable to the owners of the company 6,512.97 5,669.00
. |Non Controlling Interest 10 1,214.39 1,050.02
| Total Equity 7,727.36

., 6,719.02




Particulars - Notes As at 31-Mar-2022 | As at 31-Mar-2021

Liabilities

¢ |Non-Curtent Liabilities

Financial liabilities
(2) Borrowings , _ 14a ' 9.89 165.71
(ai) Lease liabilities ' " 14a 314.13 235.81
(b) Other financial liabilities ‘ 1 © 7810 : 59.30
Provisions 12 . 113.93 Y1313
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) : . 13a 91.27 85.18
Other non: current liabilities ) o 15 579 | - . . 591
. : 513.11 565.04
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities o N : ,
(a) Borrowings ' o ' 14a : ‘ 882.19 ' 402.24
(at) Lease liabilities - : ' 14a : 81.59 71.56
(b) Trade payables : 14b .
- Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small & - 67.39 63.03
Medium Enterprises ‘ ,
- Total outstanding dues of czedltors other than . 2,13037 1,762.83
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises o ‘
(c) Other finantial liabilities ' 1n .| 161.31 14742
Other current liabilities : C 15 ' : 100.72 89.30
Provisions ‘ ’ 12 o 67.42" *69.40
Income tax Liabilities (net) R . 49.04 | - 36.07
. . 3,540.03 A 2,641.85
Total Liabilities B : 4,053.14 : 3,206.89
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABLITIES : _ 11,780.50- 9,925.91
Significant Accounting Policies ' 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report on even date ’ :
As per our réport of even date :
For J.C. Bhalla & Co. . o For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors of
Chartered Accountants 4 U.K. Paints (India) Private Limite
Figm Regr to-o0oIN
. ! r—"———%
Akhil Bhalla . K.S. Dhingra "~ G.S. Dhingra
‘Partner ' : Director ' Director ’

Membership No. 505002 ' . ) DIN: 00048406 DIN: 00048465

Place: New Delhi

Dated: &meﬁ% ; >



UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

¥ in Crores

Particulars -Note.s YearEnded | Year Ended
. 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
"|Revenue from operations 18 T 10,750.94 8,356.77
Other income ' 19 122.72 106.33
"|Total Income ) 10,873.66 8,463.10
Expenses . o
Cost of materials consumed 20 6,183.41 4,172.83
"|Purchases of traded goods 776.85 " 628.181 -
(Increase) /decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in- process and traded 21 . (419.23) (175.78)
goods
Employee Benefits Expenses 22 711.93 636.29 |-
Finance Cost 23 " 63.88 50.98
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 24 - 304.87 285.37
Other Expenses , ' 25. 1,887.64 1,592.45
Totil Expenses : . . . : 9,509.35 | 7,190.32
Proﬁt Befote share of § |omt ventures, assocnates, exceptional Items and tax 1,364.31 ©1,272.78
.| Share in Profit/(loss) of Joint Ventures '3.86 -5.61
Share in Profit of Associate . 4.29 -0.84
Profit Before exceptional Items and tax 1,372.46 " 1,266.33
Exceptional Items ‘ 26 -18.25 ++16.61
Profit Before Tax 1,354.21 1,249.72
Tax Expense ‘ ’
Current tax . 27(a) 455.52 366.96
Deferred Tax "27(a) 2.35 4.26
: : o 457.87 362.70
Profit for the year (I) 896.34 887.02
Other Comp:ehensivé income: ’
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in’
subsequent periods: . ) 4 .
Re-measurement gains and (losses) on defined bcncﬁt obligations 0.45 (1.02)
Incomie tax effect thereof - 27() 0.11) 0.28
Net fair value (loss)/gain en investments at FVTOCI (5.60) 207.96
Income tax effect thereof 27(a) (7.00) (7.09)
Share of Other comprehensive income in Joint Venture (net of tax) 0.04 0.06
Share of Other comprehensive income in Associate (net of tax), 0.02 0.12)
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in - -
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations ' 234.73 59.72
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of.tax (II) 22253

259.79




‘| Particulass Notes Year Ended Year Ended -
T 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Total comprehensive income for the year, net .of tax (I + II) 1,118.87 1,146.81
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year attributable to :
Non-controlling interests . - (3.55) 2.82
Equity holders of the parent _ 226.08 256.97
Profit for the year attributable to: : _ ,
Non-controlling interests , ' 256.47 222.00
Equity holders of the parent 639.87 665.02
Earnings per Equity Share of 2100 cach 27(b) Lo :
Basic 35,403.49 35,035.52
Diluted 35,403.49 35,035.52
Significant Accounting Policies ' 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our rcport on even date

As per our report of even date
For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.001111N

Akhil Bhalla
Partner
Membership No. 505002

Place: New Delhi

Dated;seﬁ@mbm &8/ Q22

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

. UK. Paints (India) Private Limited -

K.S. Dhingra
Director
DIN: 00048406

G.S. Dhingra
Director
" DIN: 00048465



UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

X in Crorcs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-2022 " 31-Mar-2021
A. Cash Flow from Opcrating Activities: \
Profit Before Tax 1,354.21 | 1,249.72
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash ﬂows
Depreciation and amortization éxpenses 304.88 285.36°
Gain on carly termination of leases : (1.26) (2.04)
Loss/(Profit) on sale /discard of Property plant & equipment and Intangible assets (13.60) (6.21)
Employec Stock Compensation expenses . - 5.56 2.90.
Untealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss - (Net) 0.82 (2.59)
Re-measurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations 0.45 (1.02)
Foreign Currency Translation ‘ 221.32 59.68
Share of (Profit) /loss in Associate & Joint Ventuze (8.21) 6.44
Financc costs ‘ 63.88 50.98
Intercst Income (55.12) (58.12)
Net (gain)/loss on sale of Current Inveﬁtments (5.95) (6.76)
Dividend received - (5.27) (2.59)
Impairment loss in the value of Unqouted investment - . 1713
Fair Value changes on Cutrent Investments . (2.63) (7.50)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,859.08 1,585.38
Adjustments for : - .
(Increase) / Decreasc Other Financial Assets B (14.33) 3.98
(Tncrease) / Decrease in trade reccivables T (46.93) (320.97)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current and non current assets (84.60) (82.63)
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (838.27) (415.41)
Increase / (Decrease )in trade payables 371.08( - 533.87 |
Increase / (Decreasc )in other financial liabilities 18.33 (7.62)
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions . (1.63) (0.22
Increase /( Decrease )in othet current and non-current liabilities 11.30 2409
(Increase) / Decrease in Financial Assets - Loans (9.48) (11.73)
Cash Generated From Operations 1,264.55 " 1,358.75
Direct Taxcs paid (net of refund) (470.22) (359.53)
) Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 794.33 999.22
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment/i investment propetty and other intangible (892.42) (309.86)
assets including Capital Work in Progress and Capital Advances '
Procceds from sale of property, plant and equ1pmcnt & Investment property 19.90 14.65
Sale of Subsidiary 0.00]
Interest received 60.33 54.29
Dividend received from joint ventures 27 39|
Investment in Joint venture ,associates & subsidiaries - (26.42)
Dividend Income 5.27 2.59
Purchase/Sale of Current Investmenits (net) 29.51. (13.65)
Purchase/Sale of Non Current Investments(net) -y (8.40) 11.63
Maturity / (Investment) in bank deposits : ‘ 76.13 (189.15)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (706.97) (452.00)




Year Ended

- Particulars Year Ended
31-Mar-2022 . 31-Mar-2021
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities: R
Buy Back of shares - 0.42)
Premium on Buy Back of sharcs - 0.21)
Issuc of shares - 0.01
Premium on issue of shares / Debt - -
Issue /(Repayment) of Borrowings (Nct) 324.14 (184.46)
Finance costs paid - (39.03) (31.95)
Payment of lease liabilities- ) ' (75.72) (79.44)
Dividends Paid (Including Dividend Distribution Tax as applicable) (110.50) (14.48)
Net Cash from/(used) in Financing Activities 98.89 (310.95)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C] 186.25 236.27
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year _ 764.26 527.99 | .
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at End of the Year ) © 950.51 764.26
Refer Note 8c for Components of Cash and cash Equivalents . o
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3 .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

‘As per our report of even date
For J.C. Bhalla & Co. Co-
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.001111N

"Akhil Bhalla

Partner
' Membership No. 505002

Place: New Delhi

Dated:&FrM &8/ 2022

A X

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
U.K. Paints (India) Private Linyfed

K.S. Dhingra
Director
DIN: 00048406

Director
DIN: 00048465




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
PN )

of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

a. Equity Share Capital:

Equity shares of Ks 100 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

As at 1 April 2020
Changes in equity
At 31 March 2021
Changes in equity
At31 March 2022

No. of shares
2,53,178

2,53,178

Rin Crores
253

2.53

2,53,178

b. Other equity -
Reserves & Surplus Ttems of OCI
Equity . Foreign
. Securities | COmPORERE . Capial Foreign - curreacy Non
Particull S - ;i % R R . .
articulars premium on Retained camings Capital General Redemption Statutory Currency monetary item oct Total Controlling Total Equity
Compound Reserve Reserve Reserve | Translation transtation | TVT Interest .
Account o reserve : _ .
Financial Reserve difference
Instrument account .
As at 1st April 2021 130.15 382 476391 . 1243 231.86 005 35.89 217.93 0.00 270.63 5,666.47 1,019.51 6,685.98
| Adjustment for ecror in subsidiary R 85 | . . . R . R 185 010 195
|company - .
Re-stated As at st April 2021 130.15 3.82 4,761.86 1243 231.86 0.05 35.89 217.93 0.00 270.63 5,664.62]  1,019.41 6,684.03
i for n of Y 000 0.00 0.00
y no longer exist)
Other - 0.06 - - - - - - " (006) - . -
dj for consolidation - (5.49) 0.00 . . (0.18) 0.02 N 014 -5.46 015 531
Profit for the year B 639.87 - - - - - - . 639.87 236.47 896.34
Othec comprehensive income for the year - ‘047 - - - - 238.50 - (1259 226.08 (3.55) 222.53
I Total Comprehensive Income for the yeac - 640.05 - - - - 238.50 - (1259 865.95 252.92 1,118.87
Exercise of share options 0.98 - - . - - - - - 0.98 041 1.39
Other additions / Deletion - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Preimium on Buy Back - - - - - - - - - - - -
Share based payments - - - - - - - - - - 417 4.17
[ Transfer from other resecve - N - - - - 494 - - - 4.94 - 4.94
Teansfer to other ceserve - (5.50) - - - - - - - {5.50)) (5.73)
Dividénds - (1599) - - - - - - - (15.99) (108.95)
from sale of equity . . i | . i . | .
Nxroct 08 0.87 0.87
ion Diffel }\\ - - 003 - - .- - - - 0.03 - 004
- arch 2990 1BL13 382 5,375.90 ' 1246 231.86 |- 005 4065 456.45 0.00 258.12 6,510.44 1,183.88 7,694.32




Reserves & Surplus Tters of OCI
Equity’ Foreign .
. Securities Component Capital Foreign currency . Non
Parti . ; . .
iculars premium on Retained earnings Csz‘ta] General Redemption Statutory Cun'em_.y monel:ry‘nem 0CI Total Controlling Total Equity
Compound AMINES  Reserve Reserve Reserve | Translation | translation | [V7 Intérest
Account " i Teserve "
Financial Reserve difference
Instrument account
As ¢ 1st April 2020 125.08 411158 12.39 231.88 005 2802 15286 (7.35) 69.81 472431 810.58 5,534.89
Other Adj B . (6.78) - - - - 834 . - 1.56 - 156
|Re-stated As at 1ot April 2020 125.08 4,104.80 1239 23138 0.05 28.02 161.20 (7.35) §9.81 4,12587 810,58 5,536.45
Adjustment fo consolidation 207 262 008 | . (003) (0.00) 072 0.5 (0.15) 0.01 5.49 (5:49) B
Profit for the year - 665.02 - - - - - - - 665.02 22200 887.02
Other comprehensive income for the year - (0.41) - - 56.58 - 200.80 25697 282 259.79
T":‘ Comprehensive Income for the . “664.59 - - - - 56.58 . 200.80 92199 2482 114681
ye: .
Forfeited share capital - - - - - - - - - - - -
Exercise of shace options 181 - - - - - - - - 181 075 2.56
Other additions / Deletion 119 3.82 - - - - - - - 5.01 5.0t
Preimium on Buy Back (021 B - ©.21) (.21
Share based payments - - - - - - - - - 034 0.34
Share Options forfeitcd/lapsed - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer from othes reseeve - - - - - 715 - - - 715 - 715
Teansfer to other cescrve - (743 N - - - - - q43) (0.10) {.53)
Dividends - 000 5 - - - . - 0.00 (14.48) (14.48)
of subsidiary - - - - - - i - - - - - -
Amount reclassified from sale of equity i 113 . j j i j j . 113 j i3
shases recognised at FVTOCI v a13 .o
Translation Difference - N 047 (0.04) - - - - 7.50 - 7.92 309 11.01
130.15 382 476371 12.43 23186 0.05 3589 217.93 0.00 270.63 5,666.47 1,01951 6,685.98

|As at 31st March 2021

As per our report of even date
ForJ.C. Bhalla & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.001111N

il Bhalla
Partner
Membership No, 505002
Place: New Delhi

Datzd:gQF?@yan}p 39/.5'20&2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

"ain|

K.S. Dhingra
Director
DIN: 00048406

imited

. GS.Dhingra
Director
DIN: 00048465




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED.
o y

fidated notes fo for the year March 31, 2022 -
Note 4 - Property plant and equipment*
- Tin Crores
- Particulars B Gross Block at Cost . / Net Block
Asat Other ‘Additions | Reclassification | Deletions | Translation Asat Asat Other | Reclassific | Forthe| On Delctions | Translation|  As at Asat Asat
01.04.2021 Difference | 3£.03.2022 01.04.2021 Adjustment [ ation Year | (Accumulated | Difference [ 31.03.2022 | 31032022 | 3103.2021
upto the date of
salc)
Land B . -
Frechold 259.10 (0.70) 548 - - 2,57 .266.45 0.83 - 0.85 - 0.03 171 264.74 258.26
Leaschold - - - - - - - - - - -0.01 - -0.01 0.01 -
Buildings - - - - A N N N - . N
Frechold 827.51 ©.13)] 81.39 (0.0 114 906.88 159.82 (0.13) - 33.08 095 294 188.88 718.00 667.69
Leaschold - - - - - - - - - - N - N N
Plant & Machinery @ 1,647.56 (©.01) 211.45 - (6517)] 403 1,797.86 732.43 (o.ml - [ 15656 -64.10 354 §28.43 969.43 915.13
Fueniture and Fixtures 62.29 6.04 - 4 «|_a)_‘ ©6 . 6618 35.16 (0.07) - 6.95 2120 002 40.82 25.36 21.13
Computer @ 77.67 s - - (8.44) 041 75.58 57.26 (0.2_0){ - 9.57 837 030 58.56 17.02 20.41
Office Equi 49.81 7.02 - (0.65) 054 56.62 30.44 0.10) - 6.25 -0.45 037 36,51 20.11 19.37
[Vehicles 62.29 21.66 - (13.12) 0.09 70.92 36.70 - - 1116 -11.57 022 36.07 34.83 25.59
Electrical Fitting 1.63 052 - - - 182 1.00 (0.3 - 027 - - 0.94 0.88 0.63
Lab Equi . 033 0.01 - - - 033 0.06 - - 007 - - 0.13 0.20 027
TOTAL 2,088.19 (L58) 339.72 (0.00) (9LBY), 815 3,42.64 1,053.70 ©83)] - 2247 (86.64) 1.06 1,192.06 2,050.58 1,934.48
* Réfer note 50 .
#Depreciation amounting to Rs .0869 crores has been Capitalised to Capital Work in progress. N
@ (i) Included fallowings assets (togethér constituting color bank) given under operating lease to the dealers: ~ 2
Particulars * Gross Block at Cost Accumulated Depreciation M Net Block
Asat Additions Deletions As at Asat For the Year Deletions Asat Asat Asat
April 1, 2021 March 31,2022 | Aprill, {Accumulated| March31,2022 | March31, | March31,
: 2021 upto the date| 2022 2021
of sale) .
Plant & Machinery 30531 54.37 59.38 300.30 19177 4332 59.36 175.73 12457 11354
Computer 24.18 0.95 7.28 17:85 18.89 247 7.28 13.78 4.07 5.29
Total 329.49 -55.32 66.66 318,15 210.66 45.49 66.64 189.51 12864 . 11883

(i) Nil amount of borrowing cost is capitalised during the current and comiparative period .

Title deeds of immovable properties are in the name of the Berger Paints Indla Ltd. except tho:

Schemes of Amalgamation in earlier years.

se mentioned below which is transferred to and vested in the Holding Company pursuant to the respective

Grass Carrying Amount Net Carrying Amount Property | Reason for
held since | not being
As at March 31, [ Asat March 31, |As at March| As at March 31, Whether title deed | which date | held in the
. 2022 2021 31,2022 2021 holderis a name of
Number of titte|  Description of ’ ’ Title Dceds | promoter, director the
Assets deeds itém of property Held in the or relative of company
name of promoter/director .
or employee of
premoter/director
Property, plant and equipment 1 Freehold land at 136 136 136 1.36 [Berger Auto &| No “March 3, | Refer Note
Rishra, West Industrial 2005 |below
Bengal Coatings
Limited

Note: In terms of the order dated March 3, 2005 by the Hon'ble High Court at Calcutta approving Scherne of Amalgamation of Berger Auto and Industrial Coating Limited with the Berger paints india limited, the particular freehold land was transferred to the Berger paints india limited.

}




Note 4(a) Capital work in Progress

) i
Paniculars Asa - I Asat
“April 1, 2021 ddidons | Capitalisation | . 3y gy
Buildngs 108.00 389.63 9229 40543 :
Plan & Equipment 6361 |~ 39529 (170.87) 288.04
Ocher assers 409 19.34 (1731)| 612
TOTAL 175.70 804.26 280.38)] 699.59 °
“CWIP Reconcifistion of Becger Paints Banglsdesh Lid. s grouped undec Other assecs.
Note 4(c) - Goodvwill . - -
Particulars 51085 Block at Cost ation / dsas I Net Block
T Asar Addigons= | Deledions Translation Rsat Asa For the Year Oa Transiation | Asat | Asat Asat
0L04.2021 Difference | 31032022 [ 01042021 Deletions(Accumul | Difference | 31.03.2021 [31.03.20 31032021
- ated upto the date z -
Goodwill ~ YY) - § - 00| B0es N - - - A Y 833,68
[TOTAL 833,68 - - (00| 068 - N - 1 - [ewes 833,68
* Inchudes Goodwill idation of Rs,555.11 evores (2020-21 Rs. i -
Note 4(d) - Other Iotangible assets N
Particulars coss Block at Cost fation /7 isati Nt Block
s ot ‘Additions Deletions, Translation Rsat Asa Forthe Year| [ Translaion | Asat | Asat Asat
01.04.2021 - Differcnce | 31032022 | 01.06.2021 Deletions(Accumul | Difference | 31032022 [31.03.20|  31.03.2021
. . . ated upto the daté n
[Computer Softwase 5234 1218 ©05) ©8)) 664 $.69 620 005 0% was6| 1878 1268
@ bechp 0.28 - - on 029 - ] - - B - 0.9 028
Teade mack 0.35 - ] 000 0.35 011 [ - 0.00 05| o o
[ToTAL 5297 1218 0.05) o)l _as EX3 624 (005 @39 wso] 27 D20
Note 4(da) - Intagible Agsct unde
‘Gross Block at cost . B
Raat E
. March 34, | Addition
Pacutss 2021
Computer Sofiwae 000




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED -

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the yéar ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in ¥ (in CRORES), unless otherwise stated)

Notc'4(b) : Investment property

Profit/(Loss) from investment properties

* It is not.practicable to scgregate repairs, insurance and taxcs rclated to rented property due to voluminous transactions.
P cgregate repairs, P

(iii) Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 )
) Land Building Total Land Building Total.
Gross can;ying amount T ]
Opening gross c'arrying amount / Deemcd cost 56.04 2.98 59.02 49.38 2.98 52.36
Reclassification from PPE ' -0.00 ' 0.00
Additions 1.49 1.49 .6.66 6.66
‘| Deletions (1.07) (1.07)
Reclassification - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 56.46 2.98 59.44 56.04 2.98 59.02
Accumulated depreciation and impairment '
Opening Accumlateed depreciation - 0.81 0.81 - - 0.66 0.66
Depreciation charge/impairment losses - 0.15) 0.15 - 0.15(, 0.15
Reclassification to PPE . - - -(0.00) (0.00)
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment - 0.96 0.96 - 0.81 0.81
Net carrying amount 56.46 2.02| 58.48 56.04 2.17 58.21
() Description about Investment properties
The Company’s investment properties consist of land and a building constructed at:-
-Kiri Khurd, Pathankot :
-Plots situated at Malibu Town Tikri fatchpur, Gurgaon
-Plots situated at vatika india next, Gurgaon
(1) Amount recognised in statement of profit & loss -
Particulars " 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Rental income 0.45 1.53
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental incomc* ) )
Profit/(Loss) from investment properties before depreciation 0.45 1.53
Depreciation 0.15 0.15
0.30 1.39

The company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment propemes and no contractual obligations to cither purchase,
construct or develop investment properties or for repdirs, maintenance and enhancements.

(iv) Fair value

Pam’culars ’

31-Mar-22

31-Mar-21

-Kirt Khurd, Pathankot 7.63 7.44
-Plots situated at Malibu Town Tikri fatehpur Gu.rgnon . 10.13 10.13
13.68 12.90

-Plots situated at vatika india next, Gurgaon

Estimation of fair value of Land and building

The valuation has been carried by a registered approved valucr, conversant wtth and having knowledge of real estate activitics in the
concerned area, based on prevalent rates and other observable market inputs (level 2).




" UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes. to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 5. Investment accounted for using the Equity Method

Indirect Joint Venture

The Group has 48.98% and 49% interest in Berger Becker Coatings Private Limited (]omt venture with Becker Industrial

Coatmgs Holding AB - Sweden) and Berger Nippon Paint Automotive Coatings Private Limited (Company's Joint Venture with

Nippon Paints Automotive Coatings Co. Ltd.) that had transferred its stake in the joint venture to Issac Newton Corporation

with effect from August 28, 2021." These joint ventures are private limited companies that are not listed on any public stock

exchange: The Group’s interest in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in its consolidated Ind AS financial

statements. Carrying amount of interest in joint ventures as on March 31, 2022 and March 31,2021 amounts to Rs. 147.06 crores

and Rs. 145.89 crores respectively. Summarised financial information of the joint ventures, based on their Ind AS financial

statements are set out below:

- R in crores
. As at March 31,|As at March 31,
P ? .
[Particulars 2022 2021
Carrying amount of interest in joint ventures 147.06 145.89
Non-current assets ) 214.08 222.79 |
Current Assets . ° 313.75 289.95
Non-Current Liabilities 11126 (4.98)
~|Current Liabilities -130.72 (124.19)
Equity 385.84 ' 383.57
2in crores
- As at March 31,|As at March 31
P l td el
arneutars 2022 2021
Total income " 484.17 363.86
Total expenses 476.66 375.29
PAT 7.51 (11.43)
Total Comprehensive Income 7.59 (11.31)
Group's Share of Profit/(Loss) from joint:ventures . 3.86 (5.61)
Group's share of Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year from joint ventutes 0.04 0.06,
Group's share of total comprehensive income for the year from joint ventures ] ' - 3.90 (5.55)
The Joint Ventures have the following contingent liability: )
Particular ' Year ended Year ended
® March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
2.04 2.04

Income Tax




T in crores

Direct Associate#

As at Macch 31,
2022 .

As at March 31,
2021

276,300 (31 March 2022: 276,300) equity shares of Bigg Investment & Finance Pvt.
Led ¥+

9,033 (31 March 2022: 9,033) equity shares of Advantage Housing Pvt. Ltd.

(Goodwill amounting to Rs. 0.05 crores on 31/03/2022 (0.05 crores on 31/03/2021)
1,671 (31 March 2022: 1,671) equity shares of Kap Company Pvt. Ltd.

(Goodwill amounting to Rs. 12.77 crores on 31/03/2022 (Rs. 12.77 crores. on'

31/03/2021)

5,411 (31 March 2022: 5,411) equity shares of Efficient Buildcon Pvt. Ltd.

(Goodwill amounting to Rs. 0.00% crores on 31/03/2022 - (0.00* crores on
31/03/2021)

KSD Buildwell LLP*

(Goodwill amounting to Rs 0.00% crores on 31/03/2022 (Rs. 0.00% crores on
31/03/2021)

16,69,833 (31 March 2022 : 3,333 ) equity shages of Wisdom Colonizers Pvt. Ltd.

(Goodwill ‘amounting to Rs. 0.71 crores on 31/03/2022 (Rs. 0.71 crores on
31/03/2021) . .

# Refer note no. 42 for summarised financial information
** Includes 50,000 equity shares held by subsidiary company
* Refer note 50

Overseas Indirect Associates

39,20,000 (31 March 2021 :39,20,000) shares of Berger Becker Bangladesh Limited
and 6,86,425 (31 March 2021 - 6,86,425) shares of Berger Fosroc Limited

Totél

. 13.03
11.79

1274

2.59

3.80

30.36

1095
11.81

12.76
2.60

.0.00

2.59

29.65

74.31

70.36

221.36

216.25




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED )
Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 5a. Financial assets - Investments

* Other Quoted Investment are related to uk paints overseas Ltd.

‘Number of shares/units Xin Crores
As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021 .| 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
(a) Investments in Equity Shares ’
Quoted Investments (fully paid-up)
- of Subsidiary
Berger Paints India Ltd. - - - :
At fair value through Other comprehensive income -
Simbholi Spirit Ltd. 5,75,034 15,39,640 1.28 111
Asian Paints Limited 1,95,323 1,90,662 60.07 48.88
Akzo Nobel India Limited 19,289 18,154 3.68 ' 4.20
ICICI Bank 15,917 10,1007 | 1.16 0.65
Ultratech Cements Ltd. 348 15017 0.23 0.10
.|Vedanta Ltd. 17,621 14,000 | 0.71] 0.40
Britania Ltd 1,327 1,036 0.42 0.37
HCL Tech Ltd " N 8,424 3,183 0.98 0.36
SBI Ltd 7,767 3,831 0.38 0.21
TCS Ltd ] 3,740 2,479 1.39 0.78
Titan Industries Ttd 3,783 ©3,198 0.95 055
Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited T 55,535 53,500 2.59 3
BSE Ltd 2,92,230 97,410 27.45 - 001,
Pidilite Industries Ltd 1,35,000 1,31,280 33.09 23.86
Marico Ltd - g 1,34,990 1,32,990 6.79 5.55
Lakshmi Vilas Bank Ltd 1,09,266 *9,266 0.08 012
Page Industries 1,738 1,683 7.50 5.18
ITCLtd 1,02,927 96,782 2.57 2.22
MREF Ltd. - 248 248 . 1ol 2.04
Simbhaoli Sugars Limited 3,55,147 3,55,147 - 0.79 " 0.25
GMR Inffastructue Limited ’ 1,36,474 4,26,474 0.50 103
Bata India Limited 11,837 7,431 231 1.20
Bajaj Finance Limited 2,884 744 o 1.42 0.64
Dabur India Limited 10,190 7,515 0.54 0.46
Infosys Limited ) 8,128 7,158 1.54 1.03
Bajaj Auto Limited 1,700 1,100 0.62 0.44
Hero Motocorp Limited . 2,210 1,935 . 0:50 0.59
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited . 5,210 3,505 0.42 .0.30
Maruti Suzuki Limited 1,775 1,775 1.34 1.21
Shree Cements Limited. 400 382 0.96 -1.12
Axis Bank Limited 15,749 13,729 1.19 1.02
HDFC Bank Limited 15,042 10,899 2.20 1.70
IRB Invit Fund 55,000 55,000 0.29 0.29
Nestle India Limited 319 80 0.55 0.26
Bajaj Finance Limited - 3,030 3,030 220 1.56
Castrol India Limited . -1 16,400 - 0.21
Dalmia Limited . - o : 1,100 *1,100 0.16 . 017
Havells (T) Ltd. it 11,565 3,200. 1.33 0.50
Hindustan Unilever Ltd. 7,381 | 4,983 1.51 1.34
Larsen & Turbo Ltd 9,166 7,268 1.61 - 1.08
" |Dalmia Bharat 749 290 011 0.01
Moil Limited - . 9,672 9,672 0.18 0:15
Nbece - : : B 2,30;494 2,30,494 0.83 1.07
Bajaj Finscrv. . ' 200 T 200 0.34 . 0.19
PI Industries Limited 2,266 2,266, 0.64 | 0.51
Relaxo Footwears Limited 36,624 ’ 32,148 389 291
United Breweries Limited 3,150 3,150 0.47 0.39
Lal Path Lab. . 716 . 0171,
Kotak mahindra bank 3,016 0.53 .
Casteol India- 16,400 016
Gmr Power And Urban Infra 13,647 0.05
|Hdfc Life : 3,256 | - 0.17
Pab 16,500, 0.06
Sbi Etf ’ 1.95
Wipro 0.14
Yes Bank - 0.02
Stf Limited © 032
Other Quoted isivestments* . - " 701.89 "787.10
Total aggregate quoted investments [A] 886.87 908.53




UK Paints (India) Private Limited

Consolidated notes to fi ial e for the year ended March 31, 2021" T in Crores
Number of shares/units
. : As at As at As at As at

U 1 d-+ .

nquoted lnvestments (Fully paid-up) 31-Mar2022 | 31Mar2021 | 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021

At cost . .
Al Najah Education Ltd 28,33,333 28,33,333 23.44 28.67
Al Masah Capital Limited 6,80,864 oo - -
Diamond Lifestyle Ltd 23,47,826 - .- -
Aviva Group US $ 0.01 Shares 41,221,212 41,21,212 379 3.68
Regulus Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as AM Assets Management)’ 10,28,395 10,28,395 1.52 1.47
Regulus Capital Lid. (Formerly AM Partmers Limited) 13,75925 13,75,925 5.31 5.15
At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) ) .
Shakeikunj Apartments Limited= 1,498 1,498 0.00 0.00
Charotar Gas Company*  ~ 10 10 0.00 0.00
Total aggregate unquoted investments [B) 34.06 38.97
Total Equity Investment [A+B] 920.93 947.50
(b) Investments in Preference lnstrumemsA )

At Amortise Cost \

- of Associate at Amortise Cost ) ”
I%V Cunumnulative Prefencial Shares olf Rs. 10/ - each of Wisdom Colonizers Pvt. Ltd. 8,33.250 8.33.250 ' 8.47 838
Through FVTPL \

- of Others .

1% Non Cummulative Prefencial Shares of Rs. 100/- each of Malibu Estate Pvt. Ltd. 3,42,500 342,500 685 685
Total Preference Investment *15.32 15.23
(c) Deemed Investment in Associate (loan to associate till perpetuity) -

At fair value through profit & loss

KSD Buildwell LLP - 23.16 23.16
23.16 23.16
( d) Investment in Bonds .
At amortised cost
.66% I Fu C Limited T

8.66% India Infrastructure inance Company imited Tax free 2034 tax frec 50,000 50,000 626 . 6.26
bonds
IRFC Bonds (8.35% Pa) 104 104 11.47 ©1147(
Bharat Bond ETF - April 2025 99,994 99,994 10.00 10.00
Edelweiss Mutual Fund Bharat Bonds ETF . 20,000 20,000 200 2.00
(e) Investment in Mutual Funds
At fair value through Other comprehensive income p
HDFC Liquid Fund Growth - Direct Plan 12,167 5.05 -
BOB Preperual Bonds 8.65% 50 5.13
HDFC Prepetual Bonds 8.85% 50 i 5.09
SBI Preperual Bonds 7.72% 5 - 5.01

*IHMDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan- Growth 23,791 9.88

Total Non Curreat Investments 1,019.29 1,015.62
Total Non-current Investments 1,019.29 1,015.62 |
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 886.87 908.53|
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investment 886.87 908.53
 Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 13242 107.09

.L\Eregzlc amount of impairment in the value of invesmments .

* Refer note 50




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
* Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

' "% in Crores
Note 5b. Financial assets - Loans

Non-Current - Current

Asat As at As at Asat
31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021 | 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

oA

(Unsecured, considered good) '
Security Deposits . - - - .

Other Loans (refer note:12 for provision) 3.52 - 2898 12.28
Loans to Related parties ) 2.70 - 68.07 68.41
Intercorporate deposits ' - - 21.67 . 3481
Unsecured, consideted Bad ' B - 11.64 -.
Less : Provsion ’ - - -11.64 -
Loan to employees . - - -+ 027 0.23.
(Unsecured, considered doubtful) i .
Other Loano (ecfer note 12 for provision) : 50.30 50.30
Total loans and deposits 6.22 - 169.29 166.03

Note 5c. Other Financial assets

Non-Current . . Current
Asat . As at Asat - As at
. 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021 | 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
(Unsecured, considered good) . .
Bank Deposits with original maturity more than twelve months# 71.73 54.44 - -
Security deposits . - e018| 36.77 10.94 16.87
* |Subsidy reccivable . ‘ 30.10 - 48.32 59.11
Intecest accrued and due from related party . - . - 0.52 0.42
[nterest accrued and due on FDR » T - 215 - 1.58
Interest accrued on NCD oo . - 0.00 0.00
Unbilled Revenue - - - 0.02
Advances for share application money (to related parties) - 001] - -
Interest accrued on deposits & bonds . 0.67 1.90 T84 13.39
Other receivables® o - 0.00 8.71 ' 9.27
Advance for investment . 67.73 67.70 - -
Total Other financial assets ' 210.41 160.82 79.38 100.66

# includes deposits pledged against bank guarantees .
* Refer note no. 50 -

Note 6. Other Assets

Noa-Current Current
As at As at As at . Asat
- 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021 | 31-Mar-2022 | 3i-Mar-2021
(Unsecured, considered goond) - .. :
" |Capital advances* ’ :
- Considered Good . . 139.11 108.71 - -
- 'Doubtful Advance N 0.13 |. 0.08 . .
- Less: Allowance for Doubtful advance -0.13 -0.08 -1 . -
Advances other than capital advances ’ '
Other Advances . .
- Considered Good . , - - 36.25 41.85
- Doubtful Advance . . . Q.17 013,
- Less: Provision for doubtful advances ’ , - - -0.17 013
Imprest to employees . : - - ’ 0.05 © 001
Others , . .
Prepayments 0.39 0.1 17.21 16.69
Balances with statutory/govemment authorities ) .
- Considered Good , ’ 14.46 1417 "187.29( . 99.32
" Other Recoverable ' c . - - 8.26 7.17
Total Other Assets . . 153.96 122.99 249.06 | 165.04

* inéludes amount pai;i for acquiring rights in plots and penthouse not registered in the name of company.




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 7. Inventories

(at the lower of cost and net realisable value) ¥ in Crores
. As at Asat
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Raw materials Udcludjng in-transit Rs 142.06 crotes (I\daréh 31, 2021 - Rs.97.75 crores )] 1,032.47 638.96
Packing material [Including in-transit Rs 06 crores (March 31, 2021 - Rs, 0.23 crores)] 80.39 62.76 |
Work in process 153.64 111.59
Finished goods (mcludmg scrap stock) 1,257.84 '873.04
. | Traded goods [Including in-transit Rs.02 crores (March 31,2021 - Rs. 2.71 crores)] 145.73 147.75
Goods in transit* 65.44 63.62
Stores and Spares 25.92 25.45
Less: Allowance for non-moving inventory 0.00 0.00
Total inventories 2,761.43 1,923.17

* Related to Berger Paints Bangladesh Limited




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

C lidated notes to fi ial for the ycar ended March 31, 2022
Note 8a. Fi ial assets - [
Number of units R in Crores
\ As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Inyestments in Mutual Funds - Unquoted
At fair value through Profit & Loss
Tata Money Macket Fund- Direct Plan - Growth 21,042 8.05 -
Franklin India Short teem lncome Plan - Retail Plan-Direct-Segregated Portfolio 2 8,669 0.08 -
Franklin India Short teem Income Plan - Retail Plan-Dircct-Segregated Portfolio 3 10,320 - -
Axis Money Market Fund Direct Growth 146,503 - 16.87 -
Franklin [ndia Ultra Short Bond [Fund Super Institutional Plan - Direct - Growth L1979, 35,17.074 0.8 o7
HDFC Money Market Funds Direct Plan - Growth 15,248 7.09 .
HDFC Money Marker Fund - Dirqcr Plan -.Growth Option 61,468 1,37,402 28.61 61.47
HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan - Direct Growth - 2,99,14,406 - 35.721
HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Growth 16,47,090 - 2.04 -
Kotak Money Market Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 22474 10,281 8.14 3.58(.
Franklin India Short Teem Income Plan - Weekly Dividend 884 9,460 042 3.76
SBI Savings FFund - Dircct Plan - Growth \ - 1,46,25,739 - 50.01
ICICI Prudential Money Marker Fund - Direct Growth - 12,69,904 - 37.50
HDFC Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth 9,359 9,797 80.46 3.96
Kotak Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth 26,644 9,638 11.47 4.01
ICICI Liquid Fund . - 7.64 .
. ¢
Total Unquoted Investments 17145 209.78
Investment in Shares - Quoted
At fair valye through Profit & Loss
Axis Bank Ltd. . 2,000 2,000 0.15 0.14
Britannia Industries Ltd. 6,024 6,024 193 218
Bajaj Auto Ltd 3,351 3351 1.22 1.23
Bata [ndia Lud 12,396 12,396 243 1.74
Dabur India Ltd 40,700 40,700 218 - 220
Havells [ndia Ltd. . . 11,395 11,395 1.3 1.20
HDFC Bank Lid. . . 6,800 " 6,800 1.00 1.02
ICICI Bank Ltd. : ) 14,200 14,200 1.04 0.83
NBCC(India) Ltd. - : - -
Nestle [ndia Ltd. . 1,270 1,270, 2.21 218
Punjab National Bank Lid. - 16,500 - 0.06
Shree'Cements Lid. 754 754 1.81 222
Supreme Industres Ltd. 2,500 2,500 0.51 0.51
Yes Bank Ltd. * 56,000 56,000 0.05 0.09
Total quoted Investments 15.84 15.60
Total Current Investment 187.29 22538
Aggregate amount of quoted investments ) 15.84 15.60
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investment 15.84 15.60
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - 17145 209.78
Note 8b. Tr;de Recéivables . " in Crores
- As at As at
(Unsecured) 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Considered good 1,240.16 1,193.23
\ Credit Impaired 39.87 3191
: 1,280.03 1,225.14
Allowance for credit impaired -39.87 31.91
Total trade receivables 1,240.16 1,193.23

7

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally has credit period from 30 to 90 days

For transactions with related parties, refer note no. 34.




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements fof the year ended March 31, 2022

-

Note 8c. Cash and Cash Equivalents

¥ in Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Balances with banks: ]
— On current accounts” 753.61 422.29
— Deposits with original maturity of less than threc months 191.86 335.30
Cheques/drafts on hand - 3.96 5.59
Cash on hand 1.08 1.08
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 950.51. 764.26
, As at As at
] . 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Note 8d. Bank balances other than 8c above
Other bank balances:
— Balance with banks in Unpaid Dividend Account 5.07 6.16
~ Deposits with original maturity of not less than three months but less 25673 349,06
than twelve months .
Earmarked balances’ 0.03 0.03
Total Bank balances other than 8c above 261.83

355.25




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note - 9. Equity Share Capital

T in Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Authorised Capital :
22,58,000 Equity Shares of Rs100/- each’ 22.58 22,58
5,000 12% Non-cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 0.05 0.05
Issued Capital
2.53,178 (2,53,178) Equity Shares of Rs100/- each fully paid up 253 2.53
. . 2.53 | 2.53
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
2,53,178 Equity Shares‘ of Rs100/- each fully paid up 2,53 253
2.53 2.53

_ a) The Reconciliation of shares capital is given below:

As at 31-Mar-2022

As at 31-Mar-2021

No. of Shares | ~ in Crores | No.of | ~ in Crores

Shares
At the beginning of the year 2,53,178 2.53( 2,53,178 2.53
Add: Sharcs issued - - -
At the end of the year (net of cross holding impact) © 2,53,178 2.53 2.53

b) Terms/Rights attached to class of shares

2,53,178

The Parent Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs 100 each. Holder of each Equity Share is entitled

to one vote per sharc. The Parent Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of

Dircctors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of thc‘

Parent Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining asscts of the Parent Company, after meeting all

liabilitics and distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. ’

d) Details of Sharcholders holding more than 5 percent of Equity Shares in the Parent Company

As at 31-Mar-2022

As at 31-Mar-2021

No. of
0, M 0, 1
No. of Shares %o holdu,g Shares %o holding
Mr K.S.Dhingra 63,372 25.03% 63,372 25.03%
Mr. G.S. Dhingra 121,814 48.11% 121,814 |  48.11%
Mecta Properties LLP( Earlier Meeta Properties Pvt Ltd) 58,279. 23.02% 58,279 23.02%

As per rccords of the Parent Company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other declaratons received from

shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Details of prombter shareholding

.|Citland Comm)}. Credits Ltd

e

{7 Chiarea \O)

Name of promoter 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of % of total . % Number of | % of total | % change
shares shares change shares .shares during the
during period
the
period
K S Dhingra 63372.00 25.03]  0.00% 63372.00 25.03 0.00
G S Dhingra 121814.00 48.111  0.00% 121814.00 48.11 0.00
Meeta Dhingra 3445.00 1.36] 0.00% 3445.00 1.36 0.00
Vinu Dhingra 3445.00 1.36) 0.00% 3445.00 1.36 0.00
Rishma Kaur 393.00| - 0.16] 0.00% 393.00 0.16 0.00
essima Kumar 390.00 0.15|  0.00% 390.00 0.15 0.00
Anshana Sawhney 393.00 0.16]  0.00% 393.00 0.16 0.00
Sunaina Kohli 390.00 0.15]  0.00% 390.00 0.15 0.00
. |Kanwardip S Dhingra 393.00 0.16] 0.00% 393.00 0.16 '0.00
Dipt Dhingra 556.00 0.22|  0.00% 556.00] - 0.22 0.00
Wang Invst & Fin P Ltd ~ 150.00 -0.06]  0.00% 150.00 0.06 0.00|
Bigg Invst & Fin P Ltd 12.00 0.00]  0.00% 12.00]. 0.00 0.00
Meeta Prop. LLP. 58279.00 23.02] 0.00%] - 58279.00[ 23.02 0.00
146.00 0.06] 0.00% 146.00 0.06

0.00]-




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note - 10. Other equity

2 in Crotes
As at As at
31-Mar-2022 . 31-Mar-2021
" |Reserves & Surplus
' ) 3.82 3.82
Equity component of compound financial instruments
Securities premium Account 131.13 130.15
" Retained earnings - 5,375.90 4,763.71
General Reserve 231.86 231.86
Other reserves
Employee Stock Options outstandmg - -
Capital reserve 12.46 12.43
Capital redemption reserve 0.05 0.05
Statutory reserve 40.65 35.89
Foreign currency monetary item translaton difference 0.00 0.00
account '
Items of OCI _
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 456.45 217.93
FVTOCI reserve 258.12 -270.63
Total other equity 6,510.44 5,666.47
Non Controlling Interest .
Share in share capital 30.51 30.51
Share in other equity 1,183.88 1,019.51
’ ’ 1,214.39 1,050.02
|[Total equity 7,724.83 6,716.49

Equity component of compound financial instruments - Group's

component of compund financial instruments issued by associate company.

share in Equity

- Securities Premium Account- Premium received on equity shares issued are recognised in the

securities premium account net of utilization for bonus share issue etc.

" Retained Earnings - Retained earnings include surplus in the statement of profit and loss, Ind as
related ad]ustments as on the date of transﬂ:lon remeasurement gains/ losses on defined benefit
plans. :

General Reserve - Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created .
through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable
regulations, to ensure that if a d1v1dend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the pmd
capital of the company for that year, the total dividend distribution is less than the ‘total
distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the
requirement to mandatonly transfer a specified percentage of the net: proﬁt to general reserve
has been \mthdrawn :




UK Paints (Indla) Private Limited
Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Capital Reserve - includes Capital Reserve arising on acquisition of subsidiaries amounting to
- Rs:12.45 crores as on 31st March'2022 (31st March'2021 - Rs.12.45 crores) and of associates Rs.0.23
crores as on 31st March'2022 (31st March'2021 - Rs. 0.23 crores)

Capital redemption teserve - Represents the amount transferred, for a sum equal to the face
value of equity shares, at the time of buy-back of shares.

Statutory Reserve - This is a special reserve created under sec 451C of RBI Act, 1934 .

Forelgn Currency Translation Reserve- Represents exchange dlffcrence on translation of
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

FVTOCI Reserve (Revaluation Reserve) - This reserve represent the cumulative gains and
losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measur'cd at fair value through other
comprehensive income net of amount reclassified to retained earnings when those assets have |

been disposed off!




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Provision for housing fund cost has been :ecogmsed in compliance with Sec 41 of Nepal Labout Act, 2048 -

0 Chartered \ < |\
- Accountants O

Note 11. Other Financial Liabilities X in Crores
Non-Cutrent Current
As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021 | 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
" |Iaterest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 0.94 0.76
Unpaid Dividends - - 5.60 7.16
Other reserves . . g
Deposits - 78.10 59.30 18.53 29.91
Capital Creditors - - 47.08 31.35
Accrued Employee Liabilities - - 4239 * 40.36
Payable to Related Parties - - 0.05 0.06
Other Payables - - 46.72 37.82
Total other financial liabilities 7810 " - 59.30 161.31 147.42
Note 12. Provisions
' Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-2022 | 31:Mar-2021 | 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021 |-
Provision for Employee Benefits .
- Provision for Gratuity - 5.37 4.94 10.34 9.48
- Provision for Leave Encashment 4.58 4.51 35.03 | 32.66
-Provision for Housing Fund (Refer Note (a) below) - 2 1.60 6.75
Provision for Decommissioning Cost (Refer Note (b) below) 3.98 3.68 - -
Contingent provision against standard assets | 0.25 0.31
Contingent provision against sub standard assets - - 334 3.34
Contingent provision against doubtful assets - - 16.86 16.86
13.93 13.13 67.42 69.40
. 31-Maz-22} . 31-Mar-21
- |(a) Housing Fund '
At the beginning of the year -6.75 6.75
Atisen during the year 0.80 0.40
Utlized during the year -5.95 (0.40)
At the end of the year 1.60 6.75-




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

31-Mar-22

(b) Provision for Decommissioning Cost 31-Mar-21

At the beginning of the year 3.68 341

Aisen during the year

[nterest unwinding for the year 0.30 0.27
3.98 3.68

At the end of the year

Provision for decommissioning cost has been recognised towards decommissioning/ dismantling of Property, Plant & Equipment.

Note 13a. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities T in Crores
. As at As at
Nature - (Liability) / Asset 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Deferred Tax Liabilities
- |Ansing out of temporary differences in depreciable assets - 107.09 88.34
|Fair value measurement of investments ¢ . 17.30 9.95
Others ’ - (0.08)
Total (A) 124.39 98.21
|Deferred Tax Assets .
On expenses allowable against taxable income in future years 15.57 11.51
On temporary differences on accounting of lease rentals under Ind AS 116 10.55 (3.45)|
Decommissioning I.',iabiliry ; 1.00} | 0.93
Others 24 (1.35)
Expected credit loss on trade receivables . 0.05 1.84
Others through Other Comprchensive Income “3.54 3.55
Total (B) ) 33.12 13.03
Deferred Tax (expenses)/Income (A-B)
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets (B-A) . (91.27) (85.18)




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 13b. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities

¥ in Crores
; S As at’ As at
Ngtute - (Liability) / Ass.et 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation 1.48 5.23
Other teserves - 1.48 5.23
Deferred Tax Assets '
On expenses allowable against taxable income in future years 0.44 3.74
Others through other comprehensive income ' 0.46 0.67
Arising out of temporary differences on accounting of lease tentals : 0.33 0.38
under Ind AS 116 - 4 , ' :
Others ' ! 1.42 3.90
Total (B) 2.65 8.70
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets (B-A) ) 117 3.47




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Reéconciliation of tax expens'e and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2022 and 31 March

2021:

The tax on the group profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard rate of corporation tax in

India as follows:

’

X in Crotes
Year Ended | Year Ended
31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
‘ Accounting Profit before income tax (before share of profit from J/V and assocnates) 1,346.06 1,256.17
Profit before income tax multiplied by . 338.78 316.15
standard rate of corporate tax in India
Other reserves o
Other miscellaneous Allowances/Disallowances (net) 126.20 ~ 5336
Net effective income tax 464.97 369.51
4Income tax expense reported in the 457.87 362.70
Statement of Profit and Loss :
Income tax expense reported in . 7.11 6.82
Other Comprehensive Income '
464.98 369.52 |-

The Group has the following unused tax losses which arose on incurrence of capital losses and business losses under the Income Tax for

which no deferred tax asset has been recognised in the Balance Sheet

Financial Year Particulars 31-Mar-22 EI’)q: :;y 31-Mar-21 E;cpiry Date

FY 2016-17 Business Loss  [0.60 Dec 2021 " {1.11 Dec 2021

Y 2017-18 Business Loss , |7.92 Dec 2022 {8.86 Dec 2022

FY 2018-19 Business Loss  [10.69 Dec 2023  |11.67 Dec 2023

FY 2019-20 Business Loss  |10.51 Dec 2024 |11.37 . Dec 2024

FY'2019-20 |Business Loss  [3.33 Mar 2028 |3.33 Mar 2028

FY 2019-20 Depreciation  [0.15 N.A. 0.15 N.A.

FY 2020-21 Business Loss  |5.36 Dec 2025 |5.79 Dec 2025

FY 2020-21 Business Loss  [0.50 Mar 2029 ]0.50 Mar 2029 . . -
FY 2020-21 Depreciation  10.22 N.A. 0.22 N.A. - -
FY 2021-22 Business Loss  [2.21 Dec 2026 |0.00 0.00 -

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of the
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised is Rs. 392.14 crores (2020-21: Rs. 328.45 crores). No liability has
been recognised ini respect of these differences because management controls the distributions of the eatnings of the subsidiaries to the
holding company and it has no intention to distribute the earnings of the

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed eamings of the
subsidiaties of UK Paints India Private Limited except Berger paints India Ltd. for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
. is ¥ 5603.73 crores. No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because management controls the distributions of the
~.earnings of the subsidiaries to the holding company and it has no intention to distribute the earnings of the subsidiaries. In case of Berger
Paints India Ltd,, it is represented by management that future dividend will'be distributed from future eatned profits and management has
no intention to dlstnbute current retamed eatnings.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of the associates
of UK Paints India Private Limited for which deferred tax liabilides have not been recognised is ¥ 7.97 crore because the management has
no intention to distribute the same in the near future and further the amount involved is not material.




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE UMITED

Cousolidated aotes to financial statement for the 1“' cnded March 31, 2022

Note 14a. Borrowings

Tin Crores

Note 1:
Coimprises of :

Noa-Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021
Secured
From Banks
Term Loan (refer note - 1 below) 9.83 165.65 -l -
Bank Overdraft (refer note - 2 below) - - 1213 3214
Cash credit (refer note - 3 below) - 18.16 11.96
Current ities of long teen b ings - 66.24 -
. L 90.93 .
Working Capital Demand Loan Loans (refer note - 4 below) . 8246
UaSccured
Other Loan (refer note - 5 below} - 0.20 . 0.20
Commercial Papers {refer note - 6 below) 515.00 .*150.00
. y 006 179, :
Loans & advances from related parties (cefer note - 7 below) 0.06 53 125.48
9.89 165.711 882.19 402.24
(ai) Lease liabiliGes -
Noo-Curreat Curreot
Asat As at Asat Asat
31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2021 31-Mas-2022 31-Mar-2021.
Lease liabilities 314.13 235.81 81.59 71.56
The following is the movement in lease liabilitics duning the year ended March 31, 2022: -
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 Au at March 31, 2021
Opening 307.37 280.19;
Addition 145.05 92613
Finance cost accrued dunng the period 2547 18.96
Deletions " 866 -11.02
Payment of lease liabilives -75.72 -79.44
Teanslation Diffecence -0.75 2.55]
Balance at the end 395.76 207.37 .

i. Term Loan of Polish Zioty (PLN) 5.33 million (March 31, 2021 - PLN Nil) [equivalent Rs 9.83 crores (equivalent Rs Nil) secured by way of
hypothication and/or morgage over the property held at 12 Prosta Street, Zywiec in Poland and carries interest at WIBOR 3 Month + margin ( March

31, 2021 - Nil) and it is repayable by june 2026.

ii. Term Loan of USD Nil (March 31, 2021: USD 5.18 million) [equivalent Rs Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs 37.84 crores)) secured by an unconditional and
irrecoverable corporate guarantee from the Holding Company and by way of hypothecation and/or morgage over the fixed assets of the Holding
Company ranking pari passu with charges created in favour of other lenders. The loan carries interest at the cate of LIBOR plus 0.87% p.a (March 31,
2021: LIBOR plus 0.87% p.a) and is repayable before June 7, 2022,

Note 2:
Bank overdraft are secured against fixed deposits.

Note 3:

Note - 1: Cash Credits from banks are secured by way of first charge on book debts, inventories and other current assets ranking pan passu berween the
lenders for two subsidiaries (first pari passu charge over entire curreat assets of the two subsidiaries). Cash Credit is repayabl: on demand and carmies
interest in the range of 6.00% to 9.70% per annum  (March 31, 2021: 6.50%-9.50 % per annum).

‘Note 4:

(id). Workmg Capital Demand Loan of PLN 13.39 million [equivalent Rs 24.69 cwres] (March 31, 2021 - PLN 8.74 million [equivalent Rs 17.13 crores])

and carries interest at WIBOR 1 Month + margin.

(i): Working capital demand loans’ of Rs 34.00 crores (March 31, 2021 - Rs 35.20 crores) is secured by corporate guarantee of the Holding Company.

Loans are repayable within August 18, 2022 and carries interest from 6.30% to 6.50% per annum (March 31, 2021 - 6.20% to 7.25% per annum).

Current maturities of long term borrowings includes :-

(i) Term Loan of PLN 0.67 million (March 3t, 2021 - PLN Ni million) |equivalent Rs 1.23 crores (equivalent Rs Nil crores)] secured by way of
hypothication and/or morgage over the property held at 12 Prosta Street, Zywiec in Poland and carries interest at WIBOR 3 Month -+ margin.{ March

31, 2021 - Nil) and it is repayable by June 2026

(i)} Term Loan of USD 8.75 million (March 31, 2021: Nif) [equivalent Rs 65.01 crores (March 31, 2021: Nil)) secuted by an unconditional and
irrecoverable corporate guarantee from the Holding Company. The loan carties intetest at the rate of LIBOR plus 1.20 % p.a (March 31, 2021: NT) and

is repayable untl October 28, 2022.
Note 5:

Other Loan represents demand loan from shareholder and carries interest at 12% per annum.

:

Note 6:
Note - 4: Commercial paper issued by the Holding Company carried an interest at 3.29%-4.08% per annum as at Mazch 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: 3. 51%.
4.00% per annum) and are repaid within the maturity period of 90 days.




'UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 14b. Trade Payables

actually paid to the Micro and- Small Enterprises for the purpose of
disallowances as deductible expenditure under Section 23 of this Act

4.48

¥ in Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
- Total outstandmg dues of chro Small & Medium Enterpnses (See- 67.39 63.03
. Note below) 4
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, Small &

Medium Enterprises ' : .
Acceptances - 194.67 105.84
Outstanding dues of creditors other than acceptances 1,935.70 1,656.99

Other reserves 2,197.76 1,825.86
T in Crores
~ As at As at
, , 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises ' )
Development Act, 2006 are provided as under to the extent
intimation has been received from the suppliers regarding their
status under the Act.
Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year 61.78 . 58.55
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid at the end of the year 5.61 4.48
' 67.39 63.03.
Delayed payment of Prmclpal amount pa.td beyond appomted date during 236.03 236.03
the entire financial yea.r :
Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making the .
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day durmg the 1.60 . 1.60
year) but without adding interest specified under this Act. '
Amount of Interest due and payable for the period. (where principal has - -
been paid but interest under the MSMED Act not paid)*
|Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 1.66 1.66
- |The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 4.48

Terms and conditions of the above trade payables:-

Trade payables are non interest bearing and are normally settled on 145-60 day terms

For transactions with related parties, refer note no.34 -
* Refer note 50




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

T in Crores

Note 15. Other liabilities
" Non-Current Current
As at As at . Asat. As at
31-Mar- 31-Mat- 31-Mar- | 31-Mazr-
2022 2021 2022 2021
Advance from customers 1.35 1.35 24.16 25.76
Statutory liabilities - - 63.95 42.29 |
" Other liabilities 4.44 4.56 12:61 21.25)
: 5.79 -5.91 100.72 89.30




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended Masch 31, 2022

No_te 16a. Financial Assets
T in Crores

As at . Asat _
31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

—

Financial Assets - Non Current

At Fair Value through profit or loss/ other comprehensive income

| (a)Investments : 947.03 | - 93854
At Cost* - ' . ' ‘
(a) Investments , 34.06 38.96

At Amortised Cost

(a) Investment ) ‘ : : 38.19 38.11
(b) Loans and Deposits ‘ T ©6.22 -
(b) Other Financial Assets ~ - S 210.41 160.82

254.82 198.93

At fair value using equity method

(a) Investments in joint ventures and associates . 221.36 216.25

Total Non Current Financial Assets (a) < : 1,457.27 1,392.67

Financial Assets - Current -

At fair value through profit or loss -
‘1(a)Investments ‘ ‘ S . 187.31 . 225.38.

At Amortised Cost '
(a) Investments . o - ' -

(b) Loans and Deposits o ’ 0 169.29 166.03
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents o A y 950.51 764.26
(d) Bank balances other than ‘(b) above . 261.83 355.25 |
(e) Trade receivables : . 1,240.16 . 1,193.23
(f) Other financial assets ‘ 79.38 100.66

‘ ’ i 2,701.17 12,579.43
Total Current Financial Assets (b) , ' 2,888.48 2,804.81 |-

N

Total Financial Assets (a+b) ‘ > E 4,345.75 . 4,197.48




Note 16b. Financial Liabilities

As at

As at
: , 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Financial Liabilities - Non Current
At Amortised Cost
- (a) Borrowings A 9.89 165.71
(b) Other Financial Liabilities 78.10 59.30
Total Non Current Financial Liabilities (a) 87.99 225.01
-|Financial Liabilities - Current -
At Amortised Cost
(a) Borrowings 882.19 402.24
(b) Trade Payables 2,197.76 1,825.86
(c) Other financial liabilities 161.31 147.42
Total thtenf Financial Liabilities (b) 3,241.26 2,375.52
Total Financial Liabilities (a + b) 3,329.25 2,600.53

The Company believes the fair value of financial assets and Liabilides measured at

approximates their respective carrying value.
* No fair valuation was carried out

amortised cost




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
" Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 17. Dlstnbutlon made and proposed by holdmg and subsxdnary compames

T in Crores
: " 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Cash dividends on Equity shares paid:* A .
Final dividend for 31 March 2021 108.95 14.48
DDT on final dividend - -

‘ - 108.95 14.48
Proposed dividends on equity shares:** v :
Final dividend for 31 March 2022 6220 | 56.18
DDT on proposed dividend # - -

62.20 . 56.18 |

As at March 31, 2022, proposed dividend on equity shates are .subject to approval in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. Pending such approval proposed dividend has not been recogmsed in

these Ind AS financial statements

¢

* Includes dividend paid by parent company and dividend paid to mmorltles by sub51d1ary

company

" # With effect from 1 April 2021, the Dividend Distribution Tax (‘DDT) payable by the company .

under section 1150 of Income Tax Act

was abolished and a Wlthholdmg tax was introduced on the payment of dividend. As a result,

‘ d1v1dend 15 now taxable in the hands of the recipient.

** Relates to minorities




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 18. Revenue from Operations R in Crores
: 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
\ B
Sale of Products* 10,465.76 7,996.71
Sale of services** 131.74 227.46
Other Operating revenue - -
_Job Work Income 7.53 6.70
Scrap Sales 23.08 14.60
Interest Income# 11.00 21.70
Rental Income from [nvestment Property 0.45 1.53
Rental Income (Others) 0.53 0.57 -
Dividend Income# 0.75 0.24
Profit on sale of bonds# ' . - -
[ncome from Government Grants 65.36 45.01
Support Service Income 1.09 + 1.08
Others | 43.65 41.17
Total 10,750.94 8,356.77

.#Related to subsidiary NBFC's

* Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on (ransfer of control in the goods to customers at a point of time by

performance of obligation towards delivery or as per customers’ instruction.

** Revenue from combined contract represents supply apply contracts and is recognised at a point of time when such
‘combined output is delivered.to customers’ satisfaction as per agreed milestones and customers acknowledge their
obligation to pay for such output in accordance with terms and condition of underlying contracts.

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography:

India 8,139.03 6,340.14
Outside India 2,611.91 2,016.64
10,750.94 8,356.77
Note 19. Other Income .
’ T in Crores
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Interest }’ncome from financial assets
Deposits with banks 48.45 46.66 |1
Security Deposits - 0.07 . 0.02
Loans Given © 275 5.77
Interest on NCD 0.00 *0.00
Interest on Preference Shares (at amortised cost) 0.08 '0.05
Others 3.85 5.67
Dividend Income 5.27 2.59
Other non operating income
Profit on sale of fixed assets . 13.60 6.21
Profit on sale of penthouse - -
Insurance claim received 3.06 2.34
Net gain on sale of mutual fund i investments & Shnres 7.21 6.76
Fair value gain on investments . 263 7.50
Foreign Exchange Gain (net) 337 1.95
Discount income 3 5.38 8.23
Arrangement fees 578 2.36
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 0.05
Others - 21.22 10.17
i 122.72 106.33




Note 20. Cost of materials consuﬁed

goods

. - X in Crores
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
aw rials Consumed
Opening Stocks . ' 638.96 45389
Add: Purchases 5,714.38 " 3,756.82
Add: Adjustment ansing from acquisition ' - -
Less: Transferred to Consumption of stores and spare parts - -0.04
Less: Closing stock -1,032:47 -638.96| -
: 5,320.87 3,571.71{
Packing Material Consumed N o .
Opening Stocks 62.76 32.39
Add: Purchases 880.16 631.44
. |Less: Closing stock (80.39)| - (62.76)
' 862.53 601.07
Direct cost - 0.05
Cost of materials consumed 6,183.41 4,172.83
“ UK Paints (India) Private Limited (Consolidated)
Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note 21. Increase/(Decrease) in inventories of finished goods; work-in-process and stock-in-trade .
)
' X in Crores
- 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Opening Stock ‘
Work-in-Process 111.59 87.84
Finished Goods.and scrap . 873.04 754.31
Traded goods 147.75 109.55
. 1,132.38 95170
Add: Adjustment arising from acquisition . - -
Add: Stock Adjustement # .- 4.90
Closing Stock - -
Work-in-Peocess , 153.64 111.59
Finished Goods and scrap 1,257.84 " 873.04
Traded goods 145.73 147.75
1,557.21 1,132.38
Increase/ (decréase) in inventories of finished goods, work-in-process and traded ' (419.23) (175.78)

" #Includes finished goods used for purposes other than sale




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED .

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 22. Employee Beneﬁt Expense

Tin Crores
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Salaries and Wages 630.06 |- 562.65
" |Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 30) 36.73 32.94
Expense on Employee Stock. Option Scheme (Refer Note 31) 5.56 2.90
Staff Welfare Expenses 39.58 37.80|
711.93 636.29 |-
Note 23. Finance Costs
T in Crores
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
|Interest ori lease liabilities 24.54 18.97
Interest on borrowing and others 37.93 30.74
-{Exchange differences regarded as an ad)ustment to borrowmg costs -0.17 0.05
Total Interest expense ’ - 62.30 49.76
Unwinding of discount on provisions 0.30 . 027
Bank and other finance charges 1.28 0.95
: ' 63.88 50.98
Note 24.Depreciation and amortization expense :
- - ¥ in Crores
. 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Depreciation of tangible assets (including ROU Assets) 298.64 279.74
Amottization of intangible assets . 6.23 5.63
304.87 285.37




UK Paints (India) Private Limited (Consolidated)

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 25.0ther Expense

¥ in Crores
' 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Freight, Octroi and Delivery 583.66 461.84
Powet and Fuel 88.16 73.71
Consumption of stores and spare parts 16.11 11,67
Repairs to' Building . 3.85 2.06
Repairs to' Machinery 33.62 28.67
Repairs to Others: 17.55 11.75
Rent (Refer Note 32) 12.18 |- 4.58
Rates and Taxes 11.15 7.14 |-
Travelling 51.04 v 36.47
Advertisement and Sales Promotion Expenses- 424.03 352.45
Insurance 14.11 12.07
Processing Charges 10.51 8.81
Directors' Fees 0.05 0.06
Foreign Exchange Loss (net) 194.90 50.35
Commission to Non-Executive Directors 0.57 0.57
Contingent provision against standard & sub-standard assets 0.00 0.70
Provision for credit impaired. 0.44 2.29
Audit Fees (Refer Note 25.1) 1.86 1.80
CSR expenditure (Refer Note 25.2) 18.88" 16.86
Security expenses 4.31 4.10
Bank charges . 0.01 0.01
Legal and professional 22.51 20.54
|{Communication 34.57 31.33
Club expenses 0.07 0.18
Research & development 0.53 0.85
Ptinting and stau‘dnery 6.28 5.42|
Donations and conttibutions 0.12 0.08]
Job Work expenses 66.24 128.69
Balance written off 7.58 17.24
Mexlnbership & Subscripu'oﬁ , 0.09 -~ 0.09
Books & Periodicals 0.01 0.01
Seliirig Expenses ) 94.65 79.55
Postage and telecommunication 0.93 0.74
Loss on sale of Investment- Bonds 0.81 0.30
Impairment loss in the value of Investment - T 1713
Loss on Sale of FVTPL Shares 0.45 117
Office Upkeep . 69.99 57.99
Provision against Intercorﬁorate deposits 11.64 -
Bed debts (Interest accrued on ICD) 0.55 -
Software Development Charges 0.23 -
Loss on sale of vehicle 0.00 -
Miscellaneous Expenses -83.41 143.17
! 1,887.64 1,592.45




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Consglidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 25.1 Auditor's Remuneration

¥ in Crores
. 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Particulars
Statutory Audit Fees 1.74 "1.64
Tax Audit Fees 0.01 0.05
Miscellaneous, Certificates and Other Matters 0.12 0.11
\ ' ' 1.87 1.80
Note 25.2 Details of CSR expenditure: _ \ )
. ‘ . ¥ in.Crores
) 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the group duting the year 17.68 15.92
b) Amount spent during the year #: 18.88 16.86

’

# Rs. 1:72. crores Represents CSR acﬁvity undertaken during the year for which contractual payment was made

subsequent to the year-end.

Note 26.Exceptional Items ‘¥ in Crores
E ' : 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Workers’ profit participation and welfare fund (WPPF) (18.25) (16.61)

(18.25) (16.61)




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 27(a) Income Tax Expense

“The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are:

Profit or loss section

T in Crores

Year Ended | Year Ended

5 31-Mar-2022'| 31-Mar-2021

Current Tax: . "

Current income tax charge . 455.05 366.49

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 0.47 0.47

Total Current Tax expense - 455.52 366.96
Deferred Tax: i C ‘

) Relanng to the ongmatxon and reversal of temporary differences 235 . -4.26
Total Deferred Tax expense 2.35 (4.26)|
Income Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 457.87 362.70 |
Other Comptrehensive Income(OCI) section A
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

' T in Crores

Year Ended | Year Ended

31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

Net loss/(gain) on re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.11 (0.28)
Net fair value (loss)/gain on investments in equity shares at FVTOCI ' 7.00 7.09
Income Tax charged to OCI 7.11 6.82




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

. Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 ) a

Note 27(b) Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by’ d1v1d1ng the profit for the year ‘attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company by the -
weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and s'hafevdata used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

202122 | 2020-21

Net Profit for calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share R in 896.34 . 887.02
crores) (I) '
. Weighted average number of shares (II) : :
- Basic 2,53,178 2,53,178
- Diluted . - 2,53,178 2,53,178| .
Earning per equity share [nominal value of "100 per share] [(I)/('II)] ' ' '
© Basic 5 . 3540349  35035.52
- Diluted 35,403.49 35,035.52




U.K. PAINTS (INDIA) PVT LTD
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in T croves, unless otherwise stated)

28.) Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty ¢

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates. which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise ]udgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas tﬁat involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a fmanc1al impact on the.
- Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Critical accounhng judgements -

In the process of applying the Group s accountmg policies, management has made the
following judgement, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

(i) Lease

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of

. a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option
is reasonably certain, The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a
lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options
to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised: In evaluating the lease term, the
Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken
over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of
the underlying asset to Group’s operations considering the location of the underlying -
asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.
After considering current and future economic conditions, the Group has concluded that
no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts.

(b) Key sources of estin)ation uncertainty -

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.




U.K. PAINTS (INDIA) PVT LTD
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 2022

(All amounts in T crores, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Defined Employee benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefits and the °
present value of the.obligation thereon are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, and attrition and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, obligation amount is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptlons

A (ii)‘ Useful life and residual value of i)lant, property equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment represents a significant proportion of the assets base
of Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining
an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the -
end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of group’s assets are determined
by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including
at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technology.

(iii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments and guarantees

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance
Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such
as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect-the reported fair value of financial instruments. See note 36 for further
disclosures..

(iv) Decommissioning Liability value

Decommissioning Liability has been recognised'for items of property plant and
equipment built or installed on specified leasehold land the terms of which includes
decommissioning of such assets on expiry of the lease prior to handing over to the lessor.
'The decommissioning costs as at the end of the lease period have been estimated based -
on current costs by the Subsidiary Company's own technical experts and have been
escalated to the end of the leasehold period using suitable inflation factors. The said
escalated cost as at the end of the lease period is now discounted to the present value of
such liability by applying Subsidiary Company's weighted average cost of capital.




U.K. PAINTS (INDIA) PVT LTD

Notes to Consolidated Flnanaal Statements for the year ended March 31 2022

(All amounts in % crores, unless otherwzse stated)

(v) Impairment allowance on trade receivables

The Group makes loss allowances for credit impaired debts based on an assessment of
* the recoverability of trade and other receivables. The identification of credit impaired
debts enquires use of judgments and estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other
receivables and credit impaired debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has

been changed.

{

(vi) fmpairment of Goodwill

¢

Impairment test for Goodwill (a) Bolix SA Goodwill of "201.26 crores had arisen on
acquisition of Bolix SA, a wholly owned step-down subsidiary of the Holding
Company in an earlier year. The Group assesses the goodwill for any indication of
impairment at annual- basis. Based on such assessment there is no impairment in
goodwill that needs to be recogmsed The Group treats.Bolix SA as one cash generating
unit and goodwill relatmg to that business is tested annually for impairment. This
testing is done by computing the value in use by using cash flow projections based on
approved budget for 2022 (Previous Year: 2021) and financial forecast for the years
2023 - 2026 (Previous Years: 2022-2025). Based on such assessment there is no
1mpa1rment in goodwill that needs to be recognised. Key Assumptions used for value -

in use calculations are as follows:

Particulars | As at Asat -
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Average annual increase in cash .flows durmg 10.00% 3.00%
forecast period (i.e., five years)
Growth raté used .for extrapolation of cash flow | 0.00% 0.00%
projections beyond the five-year period
(Previous year: five years :
Discount rate 9.50% 7.50%
(b) Others |

The Group has Goodwill on consolidation arising from acquisition of STP Limited,
Berger Hesse Wood Coatings Private Limited and SBL Specialty Coatings Private
Limited. Based on such assessment there is no impairment in goodwﬂl that needs to be

recogmsed

(vii) Revenue from combined contracts: 'The Group exercises judgement in
estimating cost for recognizing revenue from combined contract with customers.
Losses on onerous contracts (if any) are recognized in the financial statements.




‘UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the yeai' ended March 31, 2022

Note 29. Information related to subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

The subsidiaries , associates & Joint Ventutes considered in the consolidated financial statements ate as follows:

Name of Company. Country of % voting power as | % voting power as at|Accounting period

: . Incorporation at March 31, 2022 “March 31, 2021- '
Direct subsidiaries - ) -
Citland Commecial Credits Ltd. India 92.18% 92.18% st Apil — 31st March
Jolly Properties Pvt. Ltd. India 95.96% 95.95% 1st Apsil — 31st March
Kanwar Properties Pvt. Ltd. India € 99.36% . 99.36% 1st Aptil - 31st March
Olly Investments Pvt. Ltd. India 100% 100% 1st April — 31st Match
Scotpio Research & Consultants LLP India 99.98% 99.98% 1st April — 31st March -
U. K. Paints (Overseas) Lmted its subsidiaries jersey ' 100% 10 0%' 1st April — 31st March
and its associate : ) .
Wang Investment Pvt. Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00% - |1st April — 31st March
Berger Paints India Ltd. , its submdiaues and its India 70.84% 70.84% st April — 31st March
joint ventutes. . . :
SandiPack India 99.99% 1st April ~ 31st March
InDirect subsidiaries . e
Flex Properties Pvt. Ltd. India 98.00% 98:00% - |1st April ~ 31st March
Direct Associates ) . .
Advantage Housing Pvt. Ltd. India - 33.33% 33.33% 1st April - 31st March
Bigg Investments & Finance Pvt. Ltd (including - ' . ‘
propotionate share of 6.28%(PY 6.28%) held by - {India 34.70% 34.70% - 1st April — 31st Match
subsidiary company) ' o .

" |Efficient Buildcon Pvt. Ltd. India 33.33%, 3333% 15t Aptil — 31st March
Kap Company General Private Limited India 33.34% 33.34% 1st April — 31st March
KSD Buildwell LLP India 50.00% 50.00% 1st Apuil — 31st Match
Wisdom Colonizers Pvt. Ltd. India 33.33% 33.33% ‘|15t April - 31st March . |
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Note 30. Employee Bénefits Obligation

(1) Defined benefit plans

(a) ‘Gratuity * : .

(D The following table summarizes the components of net deﬁ.ned benefit expense towards gratuity 1ecogmsed in the Statement of Profit and loss and OCI

and the funded status and amount recogmscd in the B’\.l’u'ACC Sheet. . . :
: ¥.in Crores -

Particulars | | 31/Mar/22 31/Mar/21
Changes in the preserit value of defined benefit obligation ' :
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year begmmng : ) 6430 | . - 59.57
Curreat Sexvice Cost ) ' . 895) - 837} )
Interest Cost - . ' 3.89 - 331
Past Service Cost ' - - B
- |Remea ents osse ' h
. |-Actuatial (gmns)/ Iosses ansmg from chaugcs in dcmogmplm . .
{assumptions™ 0.30 ) 0:64-
-Actuarial (gains)/losses asising from chmges in financial T
assumptions 048t -0.01
-Actuaral (gains)/losses ansmg from chmges in experience -0.04 . . 0.63
Benefits Paid/Transferted to gratuity fund/other adjustment . --7.38 -8.21
* |Present value of defined benefit obhgatxon as atyear end  69.54. '64.30
* Refer note no. 50 . : s : o
Changes,in fair value of plan assets |
- |Fair Value of Plan Assets as at year beginning - 49.89 . T 4134
Interést Income . , ' '3.28 . 3.18
easurements (gains)/losse:
. |-Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net Immest ) : )
expense) . -0.22 ) " -0.29 ]
-Actuarial (gains)/ losses atising from cha.nges in financial ‘ v
assumpuons - -
Employer's Contibution. ' : .o 476 9.81
“|Benefits Paid - -3.88 415
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at year end . 5383 . © 49.89
Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet . ’ a ) L
{Present value of defined benefit obhgauon at the yeat end - 69.54 . 6431 ) oo
Fair Value of the Plan Assets at the year end ' 53.83 49.89

Liability/ (Asset) Recogm'scd in the Balance Sheet : 15.71 4 - 14.42

* extracted from UK Paints India Private Limited,, Berger Paints Bantﬂadesh Limited & Berger Paints
India Lumted : .

. “%in Crores
Particulars - 20222 2020-21
’ Expense recognised in'the Statement of Profit and Loss: ' .
Current Service Cost . S C 8.95 " 837
Net Interest Cost/(lacome) - -~ 0.60 ] 013
‘ INet Cost Recognised in the Statemont of Profit'and Loas . . ‘9.55 8.50
_|Expense recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income: _ .
".|Remeasurements (gains)/losses ) 5 047 100
Net Cost Rei:ognise:d in the étatémem of Profitand Loss . - o ‘(0.47) L 1.00

A (u) The principal assumptlons used in determmmg gratuny obhganons for the Group plans are show-n below #

.Slgmf' cant Actuarial Assumptxons o o : 31/Mar/22 - 31/Mar/21
|Discount Rate . S FAE . ' 7.00% T 6.70%

- "|Employee turngver A : oL . : 3.00% “3.00%

" |Salaty increase ] 600% “6.00%
Mortality Rate ’ cey C

- |Indian Assured Lives fndian Assured Lives|
(Mortality 2006-08 |- (Moxtality 2006-08
modiﬁcd) Ul modified) v ult

- The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuatial va.luauon, taLe account of mﬂauon semonty, pt.omotmn and othet :elevant factors, such as ., -
supply and demand in the employment market . : :
T Ass“mpuons regarding future moxtzlxty expexience are set in accordance thh the p\xbhshed stanstsr.s by the Act\mry

The discount rate is based on thie government securities yield. -
. The G:oup assesses these assumpnous with its pro]ected long-term p]a_ns of gtowth and prevalent mdustry smndmds
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(iii) Major category of Plan Assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows: #

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Assets under scheme of insurance 100% 100%

’

(iv) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Assumptions . . Discount rate Discount rate
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase| * 1% decrease
(Rs. crores) (Rs. crores) (Rs. crores) (Rs. crores)
Impact on defined benefit obligation (5.41) 6.25 391 4.52
31-Mar-22 . 31-Mar-21
Assumptions ) Future Salary increasc Future Salary increase
Sensitivity Level ' 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
{Rs. crores) (Rs. crores) (Rs. crores) (Rs. crores)
Impact on defined benefit obligation . - 601 (5.31) 4.35 . . (3.84)

Impact on defined benefit obligation
(v) Risk Exposure # . .
Since the employees gratuity fund is a defined benefit plan the liabitity to be provided will be subject to interest rate risk since the future valuation of benefit depends

- upon the yield of government bonds for matching maturities

(vi) Defined Benefit Liability and Employer Contributions #
Since the employees gratuity fund is a defined benefit plan maintained by Life Insurance Corporation of [ndia the retumn is generated from a pool of assets invested by
them and any deficit in the liability and retum on plan assets is funded by the Group on a yearly basis

(vii) The Group expects to contribute"4.57 crores (March 31, 2021: "9.30 crores) to gratuity during the subsequent

(vii) Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation # Tin Crores

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Weighted Average duration of the defined benefit obligation 9-12 Years 9-12 Years
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) : 3.80 . 3.48
Between 2 and 5 years ' 21.35 20.59
Between 5 and 10 years 42.30 34.62

(b) Provident Fund

Provident Fund for certain eligible employees is administered through "Berger Paints Provident Fund (Covered)” as per the provisions of the Employees' Provident
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The Rules for such a trust provide that in a provident fund set up by the employer, any shortfall in the rate of interest
on member contrbutions as compared to the relevant rate of interest declared by the Goverment of India for this purpose will have to be met by the employer. Such
provident fund would in effect be a defined benefit plan in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Actuary has cacried out actuarial
valuation of interest  rate guarantee obligations as at the Balance Sheet date using Projected Unit Credit Method and Deterministic Approach as outlined in the
Professional Guidance Note 29 issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India. Based on such valuation, there is no future anticipated shortfall with regards to interest
rate guarantee obligation of the group as at the balance sheet date. Further during the year, the group contribution of Rs 7.19 crores (March 31, 2021: Rs 6.25 crore) to
the Provident Fund Trust, has been expensed under “Contribution to Provident and Other Funds™. Disclosures given hereunder are restricted to the information
availahle as ner the Acthuarv’s renart. :

Particulars . i 2021-22 2020-21
Discount rate 6.70% 6.70%
Expected rate of return on Plan Assets ! 8.50% 8.50%

(1) Defined contribution plans
During the year, the Group has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for defined contribution plans:

. : ¥ in Crores
. 2021-22 2020-21
Provident and Family Pénsion Fund (applicable for eligible . )
employees whose provident fund accounts are maintained with the 6.09 3.94
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner)
Superannuation Fund ' 2.29 201

Other Funds o 28.35 26.98 -
: 36.73 32.94
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Note 31: Share based payment to employees

. BergerPaints India Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2015
The Berger paints India Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 [‘the Plan’] was approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Parent
v . Company held on 3rd August, 2016 The objective of the plan is to: :
’ 1) Attract, retain and motivate Employees,
2) Create and share wealth JWwith the Employees,
3) Recognise and reward employee performance with shiares and -
4) Ericourage employees to ahgn mdrvrdual performance with the objectrve of the Group. The terms and condrtrons of the Plan is
reproduced below: . .
a) "Vesting.Date” means the date on and from which the Option vests wrth the Participant and thereby becomes exercrsable
b) “Exercise Date “means the date on which the Participant-exercises his Vested Optlons and in case of partial Exercise shall mean each
_date on which the Participant exercises part of his Vested Options.
* ¢} “Vesting Period” means ‘the period during which the Vestmg of the Option granted to the Partrcupant in pursuance of the Plan takes
place.
d) “Exercise Period” means a penod of 3 years from the Vesting Date as defined above of the Plan wnthm which the Vested Optlons can be
exercised in pursuance of the Plan.
e) The Exercise Price of an Option shall be'the face value of Rs, 1/ per Share :
f) Cashless exercise of the Options are not permitted under the Plan. Partlcrpants to pay full Aggregate Exercise Prrce upun the Exerclse of
the Vested Options. .~ !
g) Subject to Participant’s continued employment as defined in Clause 14.0f the Plan the Unvested Optlons shall vest wrth the Pa rtrcrpant
'automatrcaily in-accordance with the followmg schedule : a) 33% of the total Options granted, rourded up-to the nearest whole number,
- shall vest on the first anniversary of the Grant Date; b) further 33% of the total Options granted, rounded-up to the nearest whole number,
shall vest on the second anniversary of the Grant Date and c)balance 34% of the total Options granted, rounded up to the.whole number
. such that the total number of Options vested shall add up to 100%, shall vest on the third anniversary of the Grant Date.
~ h) The Date of grant of optuons Sth November, 2016, oth November 2017, 9th November,:2019, 10th February, 2021 and 8th November .
2021.

Asat - Asat
- March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

a Number of Sto¢k Options outstanding (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant It} . ; 28, 843 ‘ 58,729 *

B Number of Stock Optrons outstandmg {ESOP Plan 2016 Grant IV) ) ’ . R 50 233 ) '7.9,(.J.2'B
) Number of Stock Optrons outstanding (ESOP Plan 2016 Grant V) v S 73 576 C
1,52,652 1,37,757

*130 options vested out of total 58 729 options, pending to be exercised at the end of the previous fi fnanclal year were exercised and

alloted in the current financial year. .

C : ) Asat - As at

: - " March 31,2022 March 31,2021 °
b. Number of Options’ granted durmg the year - A o '
ESOP Plan 2016: Grant IV o ' , : ) . " 80,648

ESOP Plan 2016: GrantV _— _ o L C . -75910 .

BRI ' ' 1 ‘ e 775,910 80,643 -

c. Number‘bf_Optionsvested (ESOP Plan 2016: Grantll) = - - ’ ’ : R - 45,328 )
Number of Options vested (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant ili) S ageadn 30,059
Number'ofbptions vested (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant l\/) L ’ . el - 25,238 ' .

- ) L - S ‘  ‘ 54,082 . 75387

d. Number ofOptrons exercrsed (ESOP Plan 2016 : Grantll) . o L RN 3 7T S,

- Number of Options exercised (ESOP Plan 2016 : Grantlll) W o0 s 284524 | 29 929 :

o Number of(?ptlons exercised (ESOP Plan 201e.erant|V) o S T s 7600 -

T A S e se212 75257 .
TLe Number of Shares ansmg on exercrse (ESOP Plan 2016: Grantll) . o S ' - ) 45 328
! ‘:-Number of Shares arising on exercrse (ESOP.Plan 2016: Grant It} ~ B I IR '28,452# < - 29,929
/:‘ Number ofSharesansmg on exercxse (ESOP Plan 2016 Grant lV) S LT e 25760@ o

54,212 . 75,257

Aincludes 522 options of Tranche Il of Grant (i, pending to be exercised and allotted.
" #includes 130 options ofTranche 1 of Grant Ill pendlng to be exercrsed in the prevro f
ﬁnancral year. . . . :

xeréised and‘aHoted in the clurrent o T

- @ mcludes 522 opt:ons of Tranche Ii.of Grant lil.and 25,238 optrons of Tranche 1'0 Graxt IV, pendjfig 3 otment at the end of the f'nancral




As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

f. Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant |l) . - 2,640 .
Number of Options lapsed {ESOP Plan 2016: Grant ill) . ' 914 3,478
Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant 1V} o . 3,557 ' 1,620
Number of Options lapsed (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant V) . ’ 2,334 ) -

J : ' ' 6,805 7,738

o . None during the
g‘. Variation of terms of Option o oo period . None during the period
h. Total Number of Option§ in force {ESOP Plan 2016: Grant 11} . 28,843 58,729*
Total Number of Options in force {ESOP Plan 2016: Grant IV) ' . . 50,233 79,028
Total Number of Options in force (ESOP Plan 2016: Grant \j) . 73,576
: ‘ 1,52,652 1,37,757

*130 options vested out of total 58,729 options, pending to be exercised at the end of the previous flngnclal year were exercised and alloted in the current
financiat year. P 2

i. Weighted Average exercise price of the Share Options {in Re.)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year . . 1 1
Granted during the year ' ’ 1 1
Forfeited during the year - -
Exercised during the year 1 1
Expired during the year 1 1
Outstanding at the end of the year 1 1
Exercisable at the end of the period 1 1
As at . As at
N March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
j- Weighted Average share price of options exercised during the year on the date of exercise Re.1 : Re.1
k. Weighted Average fair value of the Options granted during the year .
i. ESOP Plan 2016 Grant | (Fair value as on March 31, 2019) . \ NA NA
ii. ESOP Plan 2016 Grant Il {Fair value as on March 31, 2019) - NA ’ NA
iii. ESOP Plan 2016 Grant IVl (Fair value as on March 31, 2020) . : NA T~ NA
iv. ESOP Plan 2016 Grant IV (Fair value as on March 31, 2021) . NA : 757.05
v. ESOP Plan 2016 Grant V (Fair value as on March 31, 2022} ’ . 691.41 NA
I. A description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair
value of Options granted, including the following weighted average informa}lon:-
The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model for dividend paying stock has been used to compute the fair
value of the Options. The significant assumptions are:
i . bate of grant . . . .
. a. ESOP Plan 2016 _ 08.11.2021 10.02.2021
il Weighted average share price : Rs. 699.7 Rs. 765.00
i, Exercise Price ) . Re. 1 . Re.1
iv. : ' Risk Free Interest rate . 6.84% 6.18%
v. ’ Expected Life: ) ’ . ) S
a. For aptions vested on 09.11,2018 ' - ’ 0.61 years
b. For options vested on 09.11.2020 1.61 "years 2.61 years
¢. For options ;/estéd on 11.02.2022 . h 2.87 years 3 years from t_he ves:;:s

3 yearsvfrom the

d. For opt.ions yet to be vested vesting day ;
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vi. Expected VoIatiIi'ty 16.91% 21.75%
vil. ‘ * Expected dividend yield 0.30% - 0.24%
viii. . Weighted A\/erage fair value as on grant date '
' a. ESOP Plan 2016 (Grant I1)- 09.11.2017 Rs 247.75 " Rs 247.75
b. ESOP Plan 2016: Grant Il - 09.11.2019 Rs 479.59 Rs 479.59
¢. ESOP Plan 2016: Grant IV - 10.02.2021 Rs 755.76 Rs 755.76
d. ESOP Plan 2016: GrantV- 08.11.2021 Rs 767.88 . -
X " The price of the underlying share in the markeét at the time of option grant: .
a. ESOP Plan 2016: Grént 11-09.11.2017 Rs253.70 Rs 253.70
b. ESOP Plan 2016: Grant Iit -09.:11.2019 Rs 485.40 - Rs 485.40
c. ESOP Plan 2016: Grant IV - 10.02.2021 Rs 762.15 Rs 76215
d. ESOP Plan 2016: Grant V - 08.11.2021 Rs 774.85 -
X. ' Time to maturity .o o : '
a. ESOP 2016 Plan Grant Il vested on 09.11.2018 ° o ) - 0.61 years
b. ESOP 2016 Plan Grant Ill vested on 09.11.2020 .+ Co 1.61 years 2.61 years
o ’ ¢. ESOP 2016 Plan Grant v vested on 11.02.2022 2.87 veé[s 3 years from the
’ : . vesting day

3 years from the

d. ESOP 2016 Plan Grant V (yet.to be vested)
S vesting day ) -

Expected volatility during the expected term of the ESOP is based on historical volatility of the observed market prices of the Holding
‘Company's publicly traded equity shares during a period equivalent to the expected term of the ESOP.

The fair values of our ESOP are based on the market value of our stock on the date of grant.

m. The following table summarizes information about Share Options outstanding as at year end:-

Range of exercise As at March 31, 2022
price,s per option : . : : s
(Re) . . : . Weighted - Weighted
.. . . X . “la ise
No. of-options otitstanding aver.ag.e verage‘exercnse
remaining price
contractual life (Re)
NA - . . - . . NA NA
NA , - e 4 : NA NA
1 ' < 28,843 - ' I " 1.61 years 1
1 50,233 2.87 years 1 )
1 73,576 Yet to be vested 1
Range of exercise As at March 31, 2021
prices per option - : )
" (Re) ) Weighted Weighted
' No. of optioris outstanding avep.ag'e average-exerclsg
) : remaining price
M contractual life (Re} |
-NA - NA NA
NA' e ~ NA NA
1 58,729 +2.61 years 1
1, 79,028 - "] Yet to be vested 1
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Note 32. Leases

Operating lease — Group as lessor

1. The Group has given Color bank {tinting machines) on operating lease to its dealers. The Group enters into 3- 5 years
cancellable lease agreements: However the corresponding lease rentals may be receivable for a shorter period or may be waived
off/refunded on achicvement of certain sales targets by the concerned dealersIhe minimum aggregate lease payments to be.
received in futuse is considered as Nil. Accordingly the disclosure of the minimum leasc payments reccivable at the Balance sheet

" . date is ot made. The amounts received from customers pending to be refunded back are recognised as liabilitics and arc included -

in "Deposits" under "Other financial liabilitics" in Note no. 11.

2. The Group has given land and building under operating leases. The Company enters into 1-3 years cancellable lease agrecments.
The minimum aggregate lease pnymcnts to be received in future is considered as Nil. Accordingly the dlbclosure of the minimum
lease payments receivable at the ba]ancc sheet date is not made.

Operating lease — Group as lessee

1. The Group has lease contracts for vadous depots, head office and leasehold lands used in its operations. Leases of building
generally have lease terms between 2 and 15 years, while leaschold land generally have lease teems berween 20 and 99 years.

2. The Group has leases that were classificd as operating leases and finance leases applying lad AS 17. against which company has
made one time upfront payment in full. For such leases, the carrying amount of the dght-of-use asset at the date of initial
application of Ind AS 116 is the cazrymg amount of pre- payment towards leasehold assets at the date of initial application.

3. The Group has entered into lease conteacts for its warchouses and Office Building These lease contracts run for varies geneaally

from 5 years to 10 years. Most of the lease contracts mcludc an option to renew the lease term for additional pedod after the end
of the contract term.

(i) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

* Relates to UK Paints (India) Ltd. and Besger Paints India Ltd.

i -Buildings 176:1: :::ld ;l::;ii':; Others Total
As at March 31, 2021 (restated) . T 307.67 80.83 6.82 4.33 399.65
Additions ‘ 140.74 { 8.43 0.02 1.89 151.08|.
Add: Adjustment arising from :icquisition . : 0.97 0.97
Add: Reclassification ' ' 7.64 - . 7.64
Deletions/Termination ’ . -2.15 -] 0.08 0.09 -1.98
Depreciation charge -68.10 -1.17 -218 -2.35 -73.81) -
As at March 31, 2022 386.77 88.09 4.74 3.96 483.56
- -
(ii) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities as at year end: Year Ended | Year Ended
. March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021
As at 31st March
Current Portion 81.59 67.23
Non-Current Postion 31413 | - 231.94
(iii) The following are the amounts recognised in statement of Profit or Loss: Year Ended | Year Ended
Mazrch 31,.2022|March 31, 2021
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets . 62.40 63.36
Interest expense on lease liabilities : 24.54 18.97
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 12.18 4.58
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 99.12 86.91
(iv) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease Year Ended | Year Ended
liabilities as on undiscounted basis*: March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021
' Restated
- {Less than one year 79.53 54.28
"IMore than onc ycar but less than five years 214.04 154.08
More than five years 419.10 385.45
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-

" 33.

a.

Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

Commitments )
¥ in Crores
Asat Asat -
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
_|Estimated amount of conteacts femaining to be executed on capital expenditure 441.82 467.58
and not provided for (net of advances) _
Contingent Liabilities
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
. o X in Crores
As at As at
' 31.03.2022. 31.03.2021
Income Tax 181.75 17592
.|Sales Tax 33.90 22.06
Excise Duty ‘ 26.54 |, 19.36
Goods and Service Tax 3.33 -
Directorate enforcement’ 0.96 1.36
Demurrage charges 1.86 1.86
) 248.34" 220.56

The Group has been advised by its lawyers that none of the claims are tenable and hence these are being contested and no
provision in the books have been considered necessary for these matters. The future cash flows on account of the above cannot
be determined unless the judgements/decisions are teceived from the ultimate judicial forums. No reimbursements is expected to
asise to the GLOUP in respect of above cases.

(u) Othexs:

Corporate guarantee*

R in Crores
As at As at
31.03.2022 , | .31.03.2021
Letter Of Credit 126.15 93.33
Bank Guarantee 140.52 " 161.32
- 5.96

Corporate guarantees issued by the Holding Company to a bank for loan taken by the joint venture. Total wvalue of guarantee
provided by the Holding Company is Rs 25 crores (March 31, 2021: Rs 25.crores) and the outstanding balance of.loan in the

. books of the joint venture is Rs. Nil croces (March 31, 2021: Rs 5.96 crores) which has been disclosed under contingent liabilities.
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Note 34. Disclosure in respect of Related Parties pursuant to Ind AS 24

List 6f Related Parties -

\

I) Parties where control exists itrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not

a.  A'he Parent Company is jointly controlled by the following:-

i) Mr. Kuldeep Singh Dhingra
1)  Mr. Gurbachan Singh Dhingra
iii) Meeta Properties LLP

II) Other Parties with Wﬁom transactions have taken place during the year

b. Key Managements Personnel’s of Holding coinpany and its subsidiaries:-
Mis Meeta Dhingra .

Mrs Vinu Dhingra

Mr. Kanwardeep Singh Dhingra
Mrs. Rishma Kaur

Mr. Naresh Gujral

Mt. Abhijit Roy

Mr. Srijit Dasgupta

Mrs. Sunainathingra

Mrs. Anshna Sawhney

Mrs. Jessima Kaur

Mr. Naveen Choudhary ‘
Mt. Anoop Kumar Mittal - - N
M. Sonu Bhasin ' ' '

Mr. Arnito ganguly

Mzr. Anoop Hoon '

. C(i) DirectAssociates of U.K. Paints (India) Pvt. Ltd.

O\. RN

Efficient Buildcon Pvt. Ltd.
Advantage Housing Pvt. Ltd.

Bigg Investments & Finance Pvt. Ltd.
Kap company Pvt. Ltd . -

KSD Buildwell LLP

Wisdorh Colonizer Pvt. Ltd.

C(ii) Associates of Berger Paints Bangladesh Ltd.
Berger Becker Bangladesh Ltd.

Berger Fosroc Ltd.
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E.. Enterprises over which Key l\_llm_agme_m Personnel, majority Shareholdets & their relatives have
Slgmﬁcant influence. . -

Seaward Packaging India Itd.
Rishkul Properties Pvt. Ltd.
Valerian Hospitaljty & Hotels Pvt. Ltd.
GSD Buildwell LLP
"GSD Paints Pvt. Ltd.
Burgeon Propertiés'Pv’t. Ltd. .
Surjit Plantations Pvt Ltd.
Meeta Plantations Pvt Ltd.
Kaydee farms Pvt. Ltd.
Viau Farms Pvt. Ltd.
Wazir Estate Pvt. Ltd.
GB Farms Pvt. Ltd.
VG Properties Pvt. Ltd.
14 ) UKPI Plantations Pvt. Ltd.
15 ) 'Emvee Hoticulture Pvt. Ltd.
16 ) Rishma Meadows Pvt. Lid.
17 ) 'Kanwar Greenlands Pvt. Ltd.-
18 ) RPL forest Pvt. Ltd.
19 ) Ashi Fatms Pvt. Ltd.
20 ) Sunaina evergreen Pvt. Ltd.
21 .) ' Anshna Forest Pvt. Ltd.
22 ) Aumnrit Plantation Pvt. Ltd.
23 ) Harman Greenfields Pvt Ltd. .
24 ) Britonia Properties Pvt. Ltd.
25 ) Squade Probuild Pvt. Ltd.
.26 .) Fable Probuild Pvt. Ltd.
27-:) . Flume Probuild Pvt. Ltd.
© 28 ) Lobelia Buildwell Pvt. Ltd.
29 ) Malibu Estate Pvt. Ltd. '
30 .) Creative Realtech Private Limited
31 ) Jessima Spring Farms Pvt. Litd.
32.) Malibu Town Country Club Pvt. Ltd.
33 ) MEPL Maintenance Pvt. Ltd.
34 .) KSD Probuild Pvt. Ltd.
35) Wazir Properties Pvt. Ltd.
36..) Stallion Infratech Pvt. Ltd
37) Oakleaf Probuilt LLP
38 ) Anshna Properties Pvt. Ltd. .
- 39.) Gurkul Buildtech (P) Ltd ,
.40 ) -Kfin Technologies Limited
41 ) Shalimar Tar Produicts Limited
42 ) Pasque Probiult LLP
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£ Key Managements PersonnePs Relatives

Mr. Raman Jolly

Mr. Harman Singh Dhingra - . . '

M:t. Mohinder Kaur oo ' = S ' 1 ,

Sneha Dhingra - ‘ ' : - . ) : -

g. Joint Venture of Berger Paints India Limited

—

Berger Nippon Paints Automotive Coatings Private Limited (Forimerly known as BNT;S Coatings India Private
Limited). o o : : '
Berger Becker Coating Private Limited.

h. Post Employment Plan ‘of B‘ergét Paints India Limited

Berger Paints Provident Fund. '

Berger Paints Officers (Non Management Category) Superannuation Fund.
Berger Paints Management Staff Superannuation Fund.

BAICL Employees Superannuation Fund

BAICL Employees Gratuity Fund

i. Post Employment Plan of Berger Paints Bahgladesh Limited

BPBL Employees Provident Fund
BPBL Employees Gratuity Fund

(The related party disclosure information as required under Ind AS 24 is given under Schedule A)




UK Painis (Iridia) Pot. Ltd.

Disclosures on Related Partics (Schedule A)

Relationship

Tayable/

Sr. No.| Name of Related Party Outstanding ason | Payable/ | Outstandiug as on -
31.03.2022 Receivable 31.03.2021 Receivable . .
Nature of transaction -For the yeac ended | For the year ended
. 31st March 2022 * | 31st March 2021 *
1 Sutjit Plantations Private Ltd. | Enterp over. which Key Personnel, 0.00 Receivable Expenses incutced on theiz behalf 0.00 0.00
| | Majority shareholders and their relatives have j L . ) )
_ : Significant influence. . Amount Received towards expenses incuricd 0.00 0.00
2 Wazir Properties Private Ltd. | E over which Key Pecsonnel, 0.00 Reccivable 0.00 Receivable -Expenses incuceed or: their behalf 0.00 0.00
[ Majority shaccholders and their relatives have . Sale 0.00 0.00
. significant influence. . ;
[Freaneinfiuence. Amount Received towards expenses incurred 0.00
3 Meeta Plantations Private E over which Key M; Personncl, Expenscs incurred on their behalf 0.00 0.00
Lud. Majority shareholders and their relatives have o -
significant influcnce. i Advance Received and Paid . 0.00 0.00
& | Kaydee Famms Private Lid. - | E over which Key Mz Personnel, Expenses incutred on theic behalf - 0.00 0.00
Majority shaceholders and their selatives have . B
significant influcnce. -| Amount Received zowards expenses incusred 0.00 0.00
5 Vinu Farms Private Ltd. prises over which Key ) Personnel, Bxpenses incucred on theic bekialf 0.00 0.00
. Majority shateholders and their relatives have g
significant influence. . Amount Received sowards expenses incurred 0.00 0.00
6 Wazir Estates Private Ltd. Enteprises over which Key M: Personnel, 0.00 Reccivable Expense on their behalf 0.00 0.00
- " |Majority sharcholders and their relatives have Expenses incurred on our behal - -
significant influence. i Reimburshment of Exp. From 0:00 -
Sale of goods/Services - 0.00
- . Repayment of expenses on out behalf - -
7 UKPI Plantations Pvt. Ttd. | Entecp over which Key g Personnel, Expenses incutred on their behalf . 0.00 0.00
. [Majority shareholders and their relatives have X . . o
, significant influence. 3 Amount R_ccc;vv:d towacds cxpenses incurred 0.00 0.00
8 | Emvee Horticulture Pyt Lid. | over which iKey Fersonnel, Expenscs incurred on theie bekaif - 0.00
[Majority shateholdess and their relatives have ; = ) .
X . . |significant influence. . Amount Received 10wards expenses incurred - 0.00
9| Rishoa Meadows Pvt. Lid. prises over which Key Personncl, 000|  Receivable | Expenses incurred o their behalf 0.00 0.01
. . | Majority sbaseholders and théir relatives have -
- 3 significant influence. . Amount Received 10wards expenses incusred - 0.00 0.01
10. | Kanwat Greenlands Pvt. Lid. | Enterprises over which Key M Personnel, Expenses incurred on their behalf 0.00 0.00
Majori ir relati' . . .
Majority shaccholders and their celatives have Amount Received 1owacds expenses incusved 0.00 000
. significant influence. .
11 | RPL Forests Pt. Lid. E over which Key Pessonnel, 0.00 | R bl Txpenscs incurted on their behalf . 0.00 0.00
: : Majoity shareholdecs and theic relatives have Amoust Received sowards expensés incurred 000 000
significant influence.
12 | Ashi Farms Pyt Lid. E Gver which Key M Pessonnel, Expenses incucred on theit behalf- 0.00
Majority shaceholders and theiy relatives have | Amount Received towards expenses-incurred . 0.00
X significant influence. i .
13 | G. B. Faums Pvt. Ltd. Enterprises over which Key M: ent Personnel, | Expenses incuered 3n-their behalf 0.01
. " |Majority shaschot d theis relatives b . o
s |Maiority shiueholders and thei senives ave Amount Received towacds expenses incucred 001
significant influeace. . -
14 | Sunaina B Pt Lid. .| Enterg over which Key Personnel, Expenses incucred on sheir behalf 0.00 .
Majority d their calatives h: : R
ajonty Sh.m‘vm[d“s'm their celatives have Amount Received towards éxpenses incurred 0.00
. significant inflécnce. - -
15 | Anshna Forests Pvt. Lid. Enterprises over which Key Management Pexsonnel, Bxpenses incurced an their behalf 0.00
3 Majori 2 d their rclatives h . ' .
: oty shazeholders and their ielatives have. . Amount Reccived towards expenses incusred 0.00

significant influence.”




Sr. No. | Name of Related Party Relationship OQutstanding as on Payable/ Outstanding as on Payable/
. 31.03.2022 Receivable 31.03.2021 Reccivable ) For the year ended | For the year ended
Natuee of transaction | 315t March 2022 % | 31t March 2021 %
16 | Anshna properties Ltd. Enterpriscs over which Key Management Personncl, Expenses incurred on their behalf N 0.00
Majority shaccholders and their relatives have Amount Received towards expenses incurred . 0.00
17 [ Amrit Plantations Pvt. Ltd. | Enterprises over which Key Management Pecsonncl, Expenscs incurced on their behalf 0.00 0.00
Majority shareholders and their relatives have Amount Received towards expenses incurred 0.00 0.00
18 | Harman Greenfields Pve Ltd.| Enterprises ovér which Key Management Pecsonnel, 0.00 Reccivable Expenscs incucred on their behalf 0.00 0.00
. Majority sharcholders and their relatives have Amount Received towards expenses incurred 0.00 0.00
19 | Meeta Propertics LLP Conteolling Party 5.02 Payable Expenses incurred on their behalf - 0.00
Loan taken . 5.00 -
. ! Interest Expcnscs 0.02 -
. . . Amount Received towards expenses incurred - 0.00.
20 | V. G. Peoperties Pvt. Ltd. | Enterpriscs over which Key Management Personnel, . Expenses incurréd on their behalf 0.00 0.00
Majority sharcholders and their relatives have : Amount Received towards expenses incurred 0.00 0.00
21 | Jassima Spring Farms Pvt. Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel, i 0.00 Receivable .
Lid. Majority sharcholders and their celatives have - Expenscs incurred on out behalf - -
. significant influence.
22 | Creative Realtech Pyt Lid. | Enterprises over which Key Manageiment Personnel, 0.00 Receivable | Expenses incurred on their behalf 0.00 0.00
) Majority sharcholders and their celatives have Amount Received towards expenses incurred 0.00 0.00
23 | Bigg Investments and finance | Associate Expenscs incurced on their behalf 0.00 0.14
Pvt Ltd: Amount Received towards expenscs incurced 0.00 0.14
Rental_Income 0.01 0.01
. . . GST paid 0.00 0.00
24 Me. Kuldip Singh Dhingra C lling Party/Key 1 37.03 ., Payable 10:86 * Payable Expenses incurred on their behalf 0.50 0.71
. Intecest on Loan (Net of TDS) 0.46 0.35
D of Loan 9.27 2618
Loan taken 3548 19.77
. | Reimbursement - 0.08
- ion paid 231 228
laan received - 0.42
Sale 0.02 0.02
Rent expenses 0.18 0.16
! Post Employment and Other Long Term Bencfits 004 0.04
Accrucd during the year
25 | Mr. Gubachan Singh Controlling Party/ Key Management Pessonnel 38.24 Payable 6.12 Payable Expense on our behalf 0.01 0.01
Dhingea : ' Expenscs incurred on their behalf. 0.12 0.30
Interest on loan tiken 091 0.26
- Loan Repaid ~ 38.09 22.48
Loan Taken 69.48 20.96
. Sale of Goods 0.00 0.02
R ion paid 174 173
Loan received - 0.42
Rent expenses - 0.18 0.16
Post Employment and Other Long Term Benefits, 0.04 0.04

| Accrued duting the year




-| Sr. No.

| Outstaading as on

Payable/

Outstanding as-on

Pagable/

. Name of Related Party Relationship .
oo i 31.03.2022 Reccivable 31.03.2021 Receivable Natuss of transaction ' For the year eaded | For the year ended
31st March 2022 * | 31st Macch 2021 *
26 Mrs. Meeta Dhingra Key Management Personnct 20.86 Payable 9.41 Payable Expense on their behalf 0.15 035"
R . i Tnterest on loan takea 014 010
‘ Loan Feprid 174 12.31
[ Toan Token 12.51 4.20
Amount reccived for expenses © . 0.00 001
Remuneration paid j 0.54 0.54
Rent ezpenses - . 006 0.07
Post Employment and Other Long Terim Bencfits
) o B ] | Accrued dusing the year . w3 003
27 | Mis. Vinu Dhingra Key Management Pecsonnel 29.87 Pagable 2490 Payable Tnteres: on loan taken 113 0.38
i . Interes: Paid 0.01 0.01
Loan Repaid 559 19.68
Loan Taken N 8.94 1222
. Remunzrtion paid 0.65 065
rent expenses 0.06 0.07
- Expense on theie behalt N 0.09
. ) ) N . Post E:_nplo_ym:m and Other Long Tu:m Benefits 003 003
L L . - - |Accmied during the year
28| Mr. Raman Jolly Relative of Key Management Personnel 0.03 Payable 021 Payable Consultancy Charges 021 051,
T . . Expensz on their behalf 0.01 0.01
Paymort 0.44 0.25°
Expensz on our behalf 0.00 0.00
. .. . " M TDS Payable 0.02 - 003
29 | Mr. Naveen Choudhary Kéy Management Pecsonael B = [ Remmuncration paid 0.45 036
- ) Post Employment and other long tetm benefit 002 ™
. . : . acceued during the year
30 | Mss. Anshna Sawhney Relative of Key Management Pecsonncl 9.49 Payable 1513 Payablc .| Consulmney Charges " 0.09 0.09
A . - Expensc on their behalf 0.00 0.03
Interest on loan taken 0.15 0.05
Loan Repaid” c 5.75 5.62
Loan Teken j B 5.62
. . . ) - o Remuneration paid - 0.18
31 | Mrs, Sunaina Dhingea Relative of Key Management Pegsonnel 0.03 Payable - 3.86 Payable Consultancy Chaiges 0.00 0.09
o - : . |Lown Repaid_ 389 582
Loan Taken - 3.82
. Expense o theic behalf N 012
. R L - Interest on loan taken 0.08 0.04
32 | Mus. Jessima Kaur Relative of Key Management Personael 19.89 Payable 24.10 Payable Consultancy Expenses _ . 0.09 0.09
. . . Expense on their behalf - 0.04
B Loan Repaid 422 < -
. . c ¥ ion paid 0.27 0.54
33 | Maxs Rishma Kaur Relative of Key Management Personnel 0.01 Payable : 170 Payable Consultzncy Charpges 033 0.33
: . c . Expense on their bebalf: 0.02 |, 035
° Loan Repaid N 22.45
amount -eceived for cxpenses - 0.17
Key-Mawagement Personnel Compensation . 057 052
Tacen - 3.00
ﬂli e 002
VT -

R nstoceed from KS Dhingia

OF Chatered\O

= |ARuntants] ©




Se. No.| Namc of Related Party Relationship Outstanding as on Payable/ Outstanding as on Payable/
31.03.2022 Receivable 31.03.2021 Receivable . For the year ended | For the year cnded
. Nature of transaction 315t March 2022 * | 31st March 2021 %
34 | Mr Kanwar Deep Dhingra | Relative of Key Manageinént Personnel 1595 Payable 29.90 Payable Consultancy Charges 033 033
Eipense on our behalf - 0.01
Cxpense on their behalf 0.38 0.02
Intecest on loan taken 0.33 0.09
Loan Repaid -~ 13.89 1033
Sale 0.00 0.01
Key Management Personnel G 0.56 0.52
Loan Taken . 10.00
35 | Scaward Packaging India Ltd. | Entcrpriscs over which Key Management Pecsonnel, 1040 Receivable 8.21 Receivable | Support Secvice 0.02 0.00
Majority shareholders and their relatives have Expense on ouc behalf - 0.00
significant influence. X . Expense on their behalf 0.1 0.00
‘Job Work Income 1.87 2.09
Purchase of Goods 97.03 63.47
imb 037 0.06
Rental Income - 0.01
Sale of Goods 199 0.64
| Sale of Services 0.00 T 000
Tax Paid on their Behalf i 0.42 0.08
Other adj - -
. Loans Given 34.00 2530
Interest income 2.22 1.83
. imt of Expenses - N
Loan repaid 29.55 23.85
36 | Ksd Buildwell LLP Associate 2317 Receivable 2317 Receivable | Expensc on their behalf - 0.00
. ° Reimbursement - 0.00
loan given , —
- Amount Reccived - 4
37 [ Ksd Probuilt PvtLtd Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel, Payable . | Expenses incurred on their_behalf - 0.47
Majority shareholders and their relatives have : Amount received towards expenses incurred - -
38 | Rishkul Propertics Pvt. Lid | Entcrpriscs over which Key Management Pecsonnel, 0.00|  Recejvable Expensts incurced on theie_behatl 0.00 0.00
Majority shareholders and their relatives have = ) Amount reccived towards expenses incurred - 0.00
39 | Valerian Hospitality & Hotels | Enterprises over which Key Management Pecsonncl, Expenses incureed on theic_behalf 0.00 0.00
Pot. Ltd.  ~ Majority shareholders and theic relatives have Amount received towards expenses incurred 0.00 0.00
40 | GSD Buildwell Pvt Ltd Enterprises over which Key Management Personncl, Expenscs incurred on their_behalf - - 0.00
INOW LLP Majority sharcholders and their relatives have Amount received towards expenses incurred - 0.00
41 | GSD Paints Pvt Ltd Enterpriscs over which Key Management Personacl, Expenscs incurred on their_behall - 0.00
Majority sharcholders and theit relatives have Amount reccived towards expenses incurred - 0.00
42 | Burgeon Properties Pyt Ltd | Enterpriscs over which Key Management Personncl, Expenses incurred on their. behalf - 0.00
" |Majority shateholders and their relatives have Amount received towards cxpenses incurred - 0.00
43 | Britona Propertics Pvt Ltd | Enterptiscs over which Kcy Management Personnel, Expenses incucced on their_behall - 0.00
Majority sharcholders and their celatives have . Amount reccived towacds expenses incurred - 0.00
44 |'Squade Probuild Pvt Ltd Coterpriscs over which Key Management Personncl, Expenses incurred on theic_behalf 0.00 0.00
. Majority shareholders and their rclatives have "Amount ceceived towards cxpenses incurced . 0.00 0.00




Sr. No.{ Name of Related Party Relationship j Outstanding as 0w’ Payable/ Outstanding s on Payable/
- ) ' 31.03.2022 Recejvable 31.03.2021 - Reccivable Nature of transaztion For the ycar,chdcd For.the year ended
31st March 2022 * | 31st March 2021 *
45| Fable Probuild Pve Ltd prises aver which Key Pessonnel, Experses incurred on their behalf i - 0.00
Majority sharchalders and cheir relatives have Amount reccived towards expenses incucced - 0.00
46| Flume Psobuild Pvt Ltd Ef over which Key Pessonncl, Expenses incurred on their_behalf * 0.00 0.00
. - [Majoity shatcholders and their telatives have * | Amount received towards expenses incutred 000 0.00
47 | Lobelia Bulldwell PveLtd | Entecprises over which Key M: Personnel, Expenscs incutred on theit_behalf 0.00 0.00
- Majority shaceholders and their relatives have Amount received towards expenses incurred 0.00 0.00
45 | Efficient Bulldcon Pvt Lid | Associate ] B 00L| Reccivable | Expenses incurred on their_behalf 0.01 001
. - : Amount received- owards expenses incucred - - 0.10
rental income - - 0,00 0.00
- GST . 0.00 0.00
49 |Advantage Housing Pvi Ltd | Associate 017  Reccivable 03]  Receivable | Expense on theic behalf 0.00 0.00
. . Intercst on loan given 0.01 - 0.01
. 3 loan given 0.03 0.09
loan returned - 0.06
N - . - Interest teceived on icd - 0.00
50 | Malibu Estate Pvc Lid E over which Key M ¢ Pessonncl, 161 022]| Reccivable  |loangiven - 0.26 8.56
L Majority shareholders and their relatives have ‘Advance Repaid - 001 749
[significant influence. - Purchase of Prefesence Shares - 6.85
: Support Service 032 032
. Receipt 0:12 024
. . TDS Receivable -0.03 0.02
! Expenscs incurred on out_behalf 023 -
- Rent income 001 001
) - GST 000 0.00
: ’ loan retumed - 130
Interest Income - 0.01 B
Sale of aropecty to third party 3.09 N
- s C - . . | Interest received on icd - 0.16
51 | Kap Company Private Associate 006| Receivable 003]  Receivable - | Expense on their behalf - 0.00
Limited” - . * ” . [ Interest on loan given 0.00 0.00
s . . | loangiven . . 0.03 - 0.03
52| Berger Becker Coating Pve. - priscs over which Key D Personncl, 1085  Receivable 027 Receivable~ | Expenses incurred on their behalf - N -
Lid. Majority shareholdets and theit celatives have : Amount received towards expenses incurred - -
[significant influcnce. Sale - 27.02 239
Purchase -
cenderirg of manpower 0.17
. Dividend received L 27
L . ) houst tental mcome .o
53 | Malibw Towa Counitry Club | Enterprises over which KKey D Personngl, Rental Income 0.00
Pyt Lid. ©* " {Majority shareholders and their relatives have - .
e sigvii_ﬁ:;'m influence. . | ) GST paid 0.00
54 | Wisdom Colagizer Pvt. Ltd. | Associate . 100.10 | . Receivable 10531 Receivable | Bxpense on their behalf - 0.00
. - Puschase of lvestment - 10.00
. B | interest received oa icd - 2.36
’ ' Toan teturied 735 10.00
. provision made N 222
Tntekest income 2.06 021
Purchase of goods 035 0.41
024 024

Support Service




Sr. No. | Name of Rclated Party Relationship Qutstanding as on Payablc/ Outstanding as on Payable/
. : . N 31.03.2022 Receivable 31.03.2021 Receivable - For the year ended | For the year ended
Nature of transaction 315t March 2022 * | 3ist March 2021 *
55 Berger Nippon Paints | Joint Venture 18.47 | Receivable 10.93 | Receivable Salc of goods/scrvices 191 13.93
" | Automotive Coatings Private Security Deposit Received (.25 -
Limited (Formerly known as Purchasc of Gonds (.70 1132
BNB Coatings [ndia Private Processing Income 5.22 5.14
Limited/BNB Coatings ob Work Income 5.68 4.60
Private Limited , : cental cxpenses 054 054
: Wa.(ehous: rental incnmf: and rent income with 010 135
unbilled revenue
Interest Income 0.07 -
Loan Given 4.90 -
- Equity Contribution - - 19.60
56 | Mohinder kaur Relative of Designated pecson 0.03 0.03 Payable -
i i ¥ PI: - - o .
57 | Berger Paints Provident Fund | Post employment Benefis Plan  Contibution to Provident Fund 1917 1730
S8 | Berger Paints Officers(Non | Post employment Bencfit Plan’ B -
|Management Categocy) - Contribution to Superannuation Fund 0.54 .51
Superanauation Fund -
T Emol 0 7 N
59 | BAICL Emp Post emy Benefic Flan Contribution to Supecannuation Fund 0.04 005
superannuation Fund
B Paints M: ent Benefit P -
60 Berger Paints § anagement Post emnployment Benefit Plan Contribution to Supecannuation Fund .7 1.46
Staff Supcrannuation Fund
61| Dr. Anoop Kumar Mittal [ndependent Director 0.07 Payablc 0.06 Payable Director & & Fecs 0.07 0.06
62| Mc. Naresh Gujeal Independent Director 0.07 Payable 0.06 Payable Director & & Fees 0.07 0.06
63 Mrs. Sonu Hatan Bhasin I[ndependent Director 0.07 Payable 0.06 Payable Director C & Fees 0.07 0.06
64 | Mr. Anoop Hoon Independent Director 0.07 Payable 0.06 Payablc Director Commission & Fecs 0.07 0.06
65 | Mr. Abhijit Roy Key Personnel - 0.95 Payable 0.65 Payable Key Personnel Comp - 5.84 4.30
66__| Mr. Srijit Dasgupta Key Management Personnel : 0.08 Payable . Key Personnel Ci 1.87 1.84
. 67 BAL 3 y | P l Benefit Pl - .
6 | el Giratuity | Post emg enefit Plan + | Contribution to Gratuity Fund 016 023
68 | Mr. Arunito Ganguly Key M Personnel 0.02 Payable 0.01 Payable Key Management Pecsonnel Compensation 0.53 0.46
69 | Sunaina kohli Key Management Pecsonncl 0.01 Paablc B - Remuncration Paid 018 018
. Sale 0.00 -
7 BPBL Empl i Pos P - - -
0 fond mployees provident | Post employment Bencfit Plan Contribution to providend fund 439 410
BP] o i Pos c ¢ ¢ . X i
7 e :L Employees gracuity ast emplogment Bencfit Plan 0.46 Payable 00| Receivable | o o providend fund 208 278
72 | Berger Fosroc Limited Associate 7.57 Receivable 0.02 Keceivable Matedal and service 36.94 18.77
B " p—— " cccivable
73 h erger Becker Bangladesh Associate 0.10 chuvﬂhlc 0.01 Receivable Service 0.47 2.40
imited
74| Others # Others - Dividend paid 28.36 2.81
75 | Gurkul buildtech Enterprises over which Key Management Pecsonncl, - . :
Majority sharcholders and their relatives have - Expensc on theit behalf 3 0.00 0.00
[significant influence.
76 | Mc. Harman Singh Dhingra | Relative of Key Management Personnel B Exiense on our behall - 012
Reimbursemeat - 0.12
77 | MEPL Maintcnance Pvt. Ltd. | Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel, Rent reccived - 0.02
: Majority sharcholdecs and their celatives have N Lig Management fecs ceceived - 044
significant influence. Q, ¢ Expenses reccived (NeD) - 139
78 | Srieha Dhingra Key Management Pecsonnels and their relatives 0.01 Payable [¢)
Y O Lhartered O} | Remuneration prid . 027 027
. . - ntants) . .
79 | Stallion Infratech Pvr. L1d. | E owned or sig influenced by key 006| Receivable - Tntcrest Income —_ 000 -
: managerial perSonnel & their relatives : T.oan Given 0.03
Expenses incurred on their behalf 0.00

A




Sr. No. | Name of Related Party Relationship - Outstanding as on Payable/ Outstanding as on Payable/ .
C 31.03.2022 - Receivable 31.03.2021 Receivable & ; . ) For the year ended | For the year ended
ature of tcansaction - 315t March 2022 * | 31st Maich 2021 *
79 | Stallion Infratech Pvt Ltd. .| B ise owned or signi i bykey . 006  Reccivable ) Inteces: Income 0.00 -
|managerial personnel & their cctatives ) Loan Given . 0.03
- o ’ Expenses incutred on their behalf 0.00
80 | Pasque Probiult LLP .. | Entity controlled by I<cy Managerial Personnel © - 003 Payable - . - | Salc of Property,Plant & Equij 5.20 -
) Rent Expenscs 0.05 B
81 S_ha_hmar‘an Products . N Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel 0.00 Receivable . . Rental -ncome ] 004 j
Limited - . . . . . ! N
82 - | Oakleaf Probuilt LLP };ntﬂy controlled by KKey Managerial Personnel ) 0.15 Receivable . Rent Expenses . ] . 136 R
: - ) ) . Sccuritz deposit Given - - 015 ,
& | Kein Techaclogies Limited | Entty contrfled by Key Managerial Petsonnel OO0 | Payable E - - Professionsl Secvice Expenes oon -

. # Exteacted from Berger. Paints India Limited
* Refec note no. 50 o .




UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

35 Disclosure of additional information pertaining to the Parent Company , Subsidiarics, Associates and Joint Ventures

T in Crores

. 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 - 2021-22
Net asscts Share of Profit/Loss oClL TCl
‘| Entity Name - %of Amount | Knockoff | Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount
consolidated . consoclidated consolidated consolidated ’
assets profit and loss OCI TCI

Parent .
U.k. Paints India Pvt. Ltd 13.52 1,055.87 _-10.79 1,045.08 (1.96) (17.60) . 7.38 16.42 (0.11) (1.18)
Parcnt share in Indian Subsidiaries . .
Citland Commercial Credits Ltd. 1.60 | . 137.93 -14.34 123.59 0.21 1.91 0.21 0.46 0.21 237
Jolly Properties Pvr. Ltd * 0.00|. 0.09 0.13 0.22 (0.00) (0.00) - - (0.00) (0.00)
Kanwar Properties Pyr. Ltd. 0.04 3.7 -0.32 3.38 . 0.04 0.34 - 0.00 0.00 '0.03 * 034
Olly Investments Pvt. Ltd.* 0.01 2.86 -233 “054} 0.00 + 0.02 - - 0.00 0.02
Scorpio Research & Consultaots LLP* . 047 429 3226 36.55 0.41 3.69 - - 0.33 3.69
Wang Investment Pvt. Ltd. 2.45 219.03 -29.62 189.41 0.35 3.18 14.84 33.03 3.24 36.21
Berger Paints India Ltd. , 1ts subsidiaries, and : ) .
its joint ventures. 36.52 3,934.17 | -1,111.95 2,822.22 65.83 590.10 (5.02) (11.18) 51.76 579.09
Flex Properties Private Limited (Indirect) 0.05 3.97 -0.28 3.69. 0.05 0.46 - . - 0.04 0.46
SandiPack* - - - - 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00
Parent share in Foreign Subsidiaries

’ gb};'d:;“:;::g‘;zs;ni:‘.‘;:’;“d' and its 29.47 262217|  3a466] 227751 6.42 57.51 84.09| 18713 21.86 244.64
Minority Interest in all Subsidiaries 15.72 1,214.39 1,214.39 28.61 256.47 (1.60) (3.55) 22.60 25291
Indian Associatcs (Direct) ' )
Bigg Investment and finance Pvt. Ltd. , 0.11 - 8.88 8.88 0.23 2.03 0.01 0.02 0.18 2.06
 Advantage Housing Pvt. Led.* --0.00 ) -0.08 -0.08 0.00) 0.02 - - ©.00)] - 0.02)
Efficient Buildcon Pyt Ltd.* -0.00 - -0.05 -0.05 (0.00) (0.01) - - (0.60) 0.01)
KAP Company General Pyt Ltd.* -0.60 - 012 012 " (0.00) (0.03) - - (0.00) (0.03)
Wisdom Colonizers Pye. Ltd.* 0.03 213 213 ©.19) a0 (0.15) (1.70)
KSD Buildwell LLP* -0.00 . -0.01 -0.01 ©.00) (0.00) - - (0.00) (0.00)

100.00 9,198.50 (1,471.15) 7,727.36 100.00 896.34 99.91 | 222.53 100.00 |- * 1,118.87

Note: 'I'he above figures are after eliminatiag intra gmup transactions and intra group balances as on 31“ March 2022

* Refer note no. 50
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UK PAINTS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31; 2021

35 Disclosure of additional information pertaining to the Parent Conipany , Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

. T in Crores
. 2020-21 o 2020-21 2020-21 - 2020-21
. ’ Net assets Share of Profit/Loss 0CI TCI
Entity Name % of Amount | Knock off { Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of Amount
consolidated consolidated consolidated ‘consolidated
assets profit and OCI TCI
loss

Parent ) .
U k. Paints India Pvt. Ltd 14.34 934.76 28.97 963.72 1.94 17.20 10.28 26.71 3.83 43.91
Parent share in Indian Subsidiaries
Citland Commercial Credits Ltd. 1.20 125.92 4504 80.88 0.66 5.82 ©0.04)| (0.10) 0.50 572
Jolly Properties Pvt. Ltd.* 000 0.10 013 023 o0 o1 - - " (0.00) (0.01)
Kanwar Properties Pvt. Ltd. 0.05 0337 -0.32 3.05 0.03 . 0.24 - - 0.02 0.24
Olly Investments Pvt. Ltd.* 0.01 2.84 -2.33 0.51 0.00 0.02 - - 0.00 0.02 |
Scorpio Research & Consultants LLP* " 056 0.60° 37.03 37.63 oyl (o6 - - (0.01) (0.06)
Wang Investment Pvt. Lid. ' 2.01 174.91 -40.12 134.78 1.31 11.60 1.84 4.78 143 | 16.38
Berger Paints India Ltd. , its subsidiaries,
and its joint ventures. ’ 36.08 3,383.92 -959.88 | 2,424.04 57.48 509.88 3.42 8.88 45.23 518.76
Flex Properties Private Limited (Indiccct) 0.05 351 021 3. 0.05 0.47 - - 0.04 0.47
SandiPack* 0.00 0.10 - 0.10 0.00 1 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00
Parent share in Foreign Subsidiaries .
:‘L','bl;' d:;“i::sag‘;zs;fg ;T;‘Ed‘ and its 2996.|  234905| -335.74| 20133 13.99 | 124.00 83.46 | 21682 2973 | 34091
Minority Interest in all Subsidiaries 15.63 1,050.02 1,050.02 25.03 222.00 1.09 2.82 19.60 224.82
Indian Associates (Direct) : ’
Bigg Investment and finance Pvt. Ltd. " 0.0 - 6.80 6.80 ©149)] (.28 ©04)| (012 ©12)] (139
Advantage Housing Pvt. Ltd.* -0.00f - |y 006 -0.06 (©.00) 0.01) - - (0.00) (0.01)
Efficient Buildcon Pvt Ltd.* -0.00 - -0.04 -0.04 (0.00) 0.01) - - (0.00 0.01)
KAP Company General Pvt. Ltd.* -0.00 - . -0.09] -0.09 (0.00) 0.02) - - (0.00) (0.02)
Wisdom Colonizers Pvt. Ltd.* 0.01 0.92 0.92 ©33)|. (@9 (0.25) (2.91)
KSD Buildwell LLP* -0.00 - -0.00 -0.00 (0.00) (0.00) = - (0.00) (0.00)

’ 100.00 8,029.10 | (1,310.08)| 6,719.02 1 100.00 | 887.02 100.00 | 259.79 100.00 | 1,146.81

Note: The above figures are after eliminating intra group transactions and intra group balances as on 31st March 2021

* Refer note no. 50
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Note 36 Fair Value Hierarchy

The table shown below ahalvses financial instruments carried at feit value' The different levels have been defined below:-

Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset ot lxabthty, e1ther dnectly

(1 e., as prices) ox indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) |

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (u.nobservable mputs)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at. falt value through profit and loss/ . Other Comptehenswe income at 31

a)  Financial assets and liabilities measuréd at fair value through profit and loss/ Other Comprehensive income at 31
: March 2022 E
: ) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 * Total .
Financial Assets ’ : ' '
Investment in Mutual Funds 201.61 - 201.61 |
Investment in quoted equity instruments at FVTPL 15.84 ) 15.84
Investment in quoted equity instrumeats at EVTOCI - 886.86 | 886.86
Investment in unquoted equity instruments* . ©- - 34.05 34.05
|Investment in unquoted prefereace instruments* 6.85 6.85

Financial Liabilities '
Derivatives not designated as hedges - - - -

* March 2021 ,
) Level 1 Level 2 ' Level 3 Total
Financial Assets :

Investment in Mutual Funds 205.77 - 205.77
Investment in quoted equity instruments at FVIPL. 15.60 15.60-
Investment in quoted-equity instruments at FVTOCI 908.54 908.54
Investment in unquoted equity instruments* - - 3896 | 38.96 | -
Investment in preference mstrumem.s at FVTPL 6.85
Financial Liabilities ’ ] ~ c
Denvatlves not desxgnated as,hedges ' : : I - o - -

(b) Financial instruments at amortized cost
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amorttsed cost in the financial statements are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values ‘since the Group does not anticipate that the calrylng amounts would- be -
significantly dxfferent from the values that would eventually be reéceived ot settled.

() During the Previous yea: there has been no transfer from one level to another

.

(d) Also refer 11oee 162 & 16b
‘(&) Refernote no. 50

. () Valuation technique used to determine fair velue .
R Specific vahiation techniques used to value ﬁnancml instruments include: ' : o
- the fair value of the mitual funds is determ.med usmg daily NAV as declated for the’ pamcular scheme by t_he Asset .
AManagement Company The fair value éstimates a.re mcluded in Level 2. ’ : : : -

- The Gtoup usés ] \]et asset value method for the purpose of valuaﬁon of unquoted shates at FVTPL undet level 3.

(® FE Iowever cettain unquoted mvestments (Refer note Sa) are valued at cost in the view of management the meact of t_he same to
" onthe ﬁnancmls are not material : ’
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Note 37. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings and trade payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's working capital requirements . The Group has various financial assets such as
trade receivables, loans, investments, short-term deposits and cash & cash equivalents , which arise directly from its operations.
The Group also holds 'Fair Value Through Other comprehensive Income' (FVTOCI) investments and enters into dervative
transactions by way of forward exchange contracts to hedge its payables. '

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s Board of Directors oversees the management
of these nisks. The Board of Directors is supported by the Business Process and Risk Management Committee (BPRMC) that
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group. The BPRMC provides
assurance to Board of Directors that the Group’s financial sk activities are governed by approprate policies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measuted and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. All
derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by personnels that have the appropriate skills, experience and
supervision. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative putposes may be undertaken. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
factors. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, cutrency sisk and other price risk, such as equity price risk,
liquidity risk and commaodity risk. Fihancial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI
investments and financial derivative.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of
the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant at March 31, 2022.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement
obligations.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensmvny analysis:

P The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respectlve market risks. T}us is based
on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

P> The sensitivity of equity is calculated as at March 31, 2022 for the effects of the assumed changes of the underlying risk

Interest rate risk

The Group has incurred short term debt to finance its working capital , which exposes it to interest rate risk. Botrowingé issued
at variable rates expose the Group to interest rate risk. Bortowing issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group's interest rate risk management policy includes achieving the lowest possible cost of debt financing, while

. managing volatility of interest rates, applying a prudent mix of fixed and floating debt through evaluatlon of various bank loans
and money market instruments.

The Group has incurred long term debt to finance acquisition , which exposes it to interest rate risk. Some of the Group's
borrowings are index linked, that is their cost is linked to changes in the London inter-bank offer rate (LIBOR).

Although the Group has significant variable rate interest bearing liabilities at March 31, 2022, there would not be a.ny material
. impact on pretax profit and pretax equity of the Group on account of any anuc1pated fluctuations in interest.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has a policy of entering into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage risk of foreign exchange fluctuations on
‘borfowings and payables. These contracts are not designated in hedge telationships and are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Foreign cutrency risk is the sk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes
in exchange rates of any currency . The Group’s exposute to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Group’s operating activities by way of direct imports or financing of imports through foreign curtency instruments.

The Group proactively hedged its currency exposutes in case of a significant movement in exchange rates for impotts and in case
the hedged cost of foreign currency instrument is lower than the domestic cost of borrowing in case of short term import
financing .

There are no outstanding derivative contracts as at March 31,2022 and March 31, 2021.

-

into any long term contract with its suppliers for hedging its commodity price risk.
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Equity price risk .

Equity price risk in respect of listed and non listed equity securities which ate susceptible to market price risk arising from
uncertainties about future value of the investment securities. In view of investments being held by the Group, the management
of the magmrude of the risk is outsourced and managed by the speclahsed brokerage firm.

Credit risk . '

Credit risk is the risk that counterpatty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to
a financial loss. The Group is exposed to ciedit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, mcludmg deposits with banks and ﬁnancml .institutions, and other financial instruments.

The concentration of Credit Risk is limited as the customer base is large. Thexe is no customer représenting more than 5% of the
total balance of ‘trade receivable. As a practical expedient, the Group computes credit loss allowances based on a provision
matrix. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over expected life of trade receivable and is
adjusted for forward looking estimates. Additionally, considering the COVID 19 situation, the Group has also assessed the
performance and recoverability of trade receivables. The Group believes that the current value of trade receivables reflects the
fair value/ recoverable values.

Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade As at March  As at March

receivable ' ' - 31, 2022 31, 2021

© Balance at the beginning of the year . 3191 31.79
'Loss allowance measured at lifetime expected credxt losses (net of bad debts) : 7.96 . 012
Balance at the end of the year . . © o 39.87 31.91

Trade receivables ) .

Customer credit risk is .managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating
to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and
individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored
by BPRMC and corrective actions taken.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance
with the Group’s policy. Investmeénts of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits
assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Group’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and
may be updated throughout the year subject to approvil of the Group’s Finance Committee. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 i is
the carrying amouants as illustrated in Note lé(a)

Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds usmg a hqmd.lty planning tool

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts,
cash credit facilities and buyers' credit facilities. The Group assessed the conceritration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt
and concluded i it to be Jow. The Group has access to,a sufﬁclent variety of sources of fundmg and debt.

Particulars . ‘ 31103-2022 | 31-03-2021
Current financial assets (CFA) ' ‘ ' o '2,888.46 2,804.81 '
Non-current financial assets (NCFA) _ ) . : 1,457.27 1,392.68
Total financial assets (FA) . ‘ : 4,345.73 4,197.49
|Cusrent financial Liabilities (CFL) . 3,241.26 2,375.52| .
Non-current financial liabilities (NCFL) ' —— 87.99 225.01
Total financial liabilities (FL) 4 o : 3,329.25 2,600.52
Ratios = - A ' .
CFA/ CFL _ : . . 0.89 : 1.18
NCFA/NCFL , - : . - 16.56 6.19
FA/FL R - ©1.31 ) 1.61
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Note 38. Capital management

For the purpose of the Group capital managerﬁént capital includes issued equity capital share premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The pr1mary objective of the

Parent Company’s capital management is to maxumse the shareholder value
)

The Group avails. short term borrowings to breach its working cap1ta1 gap and finances its capital

expendlture through internal generatlon of funds. .

: 4 ' : 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
| Borrowmgs Lo - 892.08 567.95
Less: cash and cash equlvalents . : - (950.51) (764.26)
Net debt o ) ' ' ' -58.43 -196.31
Total capital S ; . 7,727.36|  6719.02
Capital and net debt C : 7,668.93 6,522.71
Gearing ratio _ : : -1% ' -3%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to' the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capita1~st.ructu,réArequi'rcmer.1ts. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

-No changes were made in the objectives, pohcies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 Match 2022 and 31 March 2021. ' :
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Note 39
Note 40

Note 41

Note 42

1)

2)

Depreciation amounting to Rs.226.51 crores of Berger Paints India Limited and Rs 65.77 crores of Berger Paints
Bangladesh Limited has been computed on St'raight Line Method (SLM).

Inventory amounting to Rs.2315.83 crores of Berger Paints India Limited have been valued at Wexghted Average
Method.

Shares held by subsidiary companies in parent:-

Two of our subsidiaries namely, Citland Commercial Credits Limited and Wang Investments and Fmance
+Private Limited are holding together 296 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each in Holding Company i.¢, UK Paints.(India)
Private Limited. As per guidance provided by Ind AS it has been treated as treasury shares. Capital Loss\
amounting to Rs 1.51 crores on account of cross holdings has been adjusted with Capital Reserve arising on
account of acquisitions.

Interest in other entities (Refer note 5)

Interest in direct associates
Details of the Parent company direct associates at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Name of associates Place of Proportion of ownership.
incorporation and ‘interest and voting power held
operation " by the Group
, 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
1) Advantage Housing Private Limited India 33.33% " 33.33%
2) Bigg Investments & Finance Private Limited India 34.70% 34.70%
3) Efficient Buildcon Private Limited India 33.33% ' 33.33%
4) Kap Company General Private Limited - India 33.34% 33.34%
5) KSD Buildwell LLP India 50.00% * 50.00%
6) Wisdom Colonizers Private Limited India 33.33% 33.33%

The above associates is accounted for usingthe equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

Reconciliation of the Net assets to the carrying amount of the interest in the assoc1ates recognised in consolidated
‘financial statements:

31-Mar-21

.31-Mar-22

Net assets of Advantage Housing Private Limited 35.22 35.28
Group's share in % 33.33% 33.33%
Group's sharein 11.74 1176 |
Adjusﬁnents:

Goodwill generated on acquisition of shares in associate 0.05 0.05
|Group's sharein adjustment for tax on balance undistributed profits . - -
Carrying amount ,11.79 11.81

_ , . 31-Mar22 | 31-Mar-21

Net assets of Bigg Investments & Finance Private Limited 35.46 - 29.53
Group's share in % 34.70% " 34.70%
Group's share in.” 12.31 | 10.25
Adjustments: '

Other ad]ustment 070 0.70
Group's share in adjustment fot tax on balance undxstrlbuted proflts - -
Carrying amount 13.01 | 10.95
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3)

1)

5)

6.

‘Note 43

Note 44

Carrying amount

_ 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Net assets of Efficient Buildcon Private Limited 7.78 .7.81
|Group's share in % 33.33% 33.33%
. |Group's share in ~ 2.59 2.60
Adjustrhents: -
Goodwill generated on acquisition of shares in associate 0.00 0.00
Group's share in adjustment for tax on balance undistributed profits - -
Carryiﬁg amount 2.59 2.60
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 -
Net assets of Kap Company General Private Limited -0.10 | . - -0.02
Group's share in % 33.34% 33.34%
Group's share in ~ -0.03 -0.01
Adjustments: - -
Goodwill generated on acquisition of shares in associate - 1277 1277
Group's share in adjustmént for tax on balance undistributed profits - -
Carrying amount 12.74 12.76:
- 31-Mar-22 , | '31-Mar-21
Net assets of KSD Buildwell LLP -0.0} -0.01
Group's share in % . , 50.00% 50.00%
Group's share in -0.00 -0.00
Adjustments:
" |Goodwill generated on acquisition of shares in associate
Group's share in adjustment for tax on balance undistributed profits 0.00 0.00
Carrying amount v 0.00 0.00
31-Mar22 | 31-Mar21 .
Net assets of Wisdom Colonizers Private Limited. 9.27 5.64
Group's share in % 33.33% © 33.33%
Group's share in ~ 3.09 1.88
Adjustments: .
Goodwill generated on acquisition of shares in associate 0.71 071
Group's share in adjustment for tax on balance undistributed profits - -
3.80 2.59

Impact of unrealized profit on closing stock has not been considered in relation to sale by parent company to

Berger Paints India Limited.

TN

xgpber, 2022 subject to approval of shareholders.

Fe ated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Parent company .
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Note no. 45

“ A Ageing schedule of trade receivables -

Outstanding from the due date of payment

31 March 2022 Total
' Less than | 6 months - | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | Mote than
Currentbutnot| ¢ 1 onths 1year 3 years
due
Undisputed trade receivables — 851.41 192.46 160.92 28.51 4.68 218 1,240.16
considered good ' ' '
Undisputed trade receivables — 0.29 181 11.15 297 3.78 10.66 30.68
credit impaired :
Disputed trade receivables - 0.14 0.02 0.20. 1.63 3.49 372 9.19
credit impaired A
Total 851.84 194.29 172.27. 33.11 11.95 16.56 | 1,280.01
*131 March 2021 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Less than | 6 months - | 1-2 yearts | 2-3 years | Mote than
Currentbutnot| ¢ 1 onths 1year 3 years
due .
Undisputed trade receivables — 815.32 218.60 - 140.05 11.84 6.33 110 1,193.23
considered good _
Undisputed trade receivables — 0.35 4.14 . 9.40 4.27 3.17 425 2558
credit impaired
Disputed trade receivables - - - - 1.17 1.74 3.42 6.33
credit impaired 5
Total 815.67 222.74 149.45 17.28 11.23 8.77 | 1,225.14
B Ageing schedule of trade payables
31 Match 2022 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
v Not due |Less than 1| 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than | -
Unbilled ‘yeat i 3 years
Micro, small and medium - 50.07 12.66 1.66 1.20 1.80 67.39
enterprises _ .
Others 399.83 1,053.17 660.71 8.28 1.56 6.82| 2,130.37
Total 399.83 | 1,103.24 673.37 9.94 2.76 8.621 2,197.76
31 March 2021 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
‘ Not due |[Less than 1/ .1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than
Unbilled year 3 years
Micro, small and medium - 48.56 11.09 1.37 0.57 1.44 63.03
enterprises -
389.51 808.47 |. 539.54 9.91 4.17 1124 1,762.83 |
857.03 550.62 11.28 4.74

389.51

12.68

1,825.86
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Note 46 - COVID -19 Assessment

During the year, the Group’s business operations were initially impécted due to COVID-19 pandemic and consequent lockdowns.
While the pandemic situation has improved significantly in the last nine months of the current year, the Group is closely
monitoring the uncertainties arising from continuing COVID-19 pandemic and has taken into consideration possible effects of such
pandemic for preparation of these financial statements, including assessment of recoverability of its assets based on the internal
-and external information upto the date of approval of the financial statements The Group will also continue to monitor any .
material impact of future economic conditions.

Note 47 - Social Security Code

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 ('the Code') which, inter aI‘ia, deals with employee benefits
'during employment and post employment. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. The effective date of the Code'is .
yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of this, the impact of the
change, if any, will be assessed and recognized post notification of the relevant provisions.

\

Note 48 - Additional regulatory information required by Schedule Il to The Companies Act, 2013

(i) The Holding Company and its Indian. Subsidiaries and Indian joint ventures and its indian associates do not have any benami"
property held in its name. No_proceédings have been initiated on or are pending against the Holding Company for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988"(45 of 1988) and the Rules made thereunder.

(i) The Holding Company and its Indian Subsidiaries and Indian joint ventures and its indian associates have not been declared
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any government authority.

{iii) There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(such as search or survey), that has not been recarded in the books of account. -

(iv) The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

(v) The Holding Company and its Indian Subsidiaries and Indian joint ventures and its indian associates do not have any charges or
satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(vi) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share oremium
I. The Parent and Indian Subsidiaries have not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premlum or

any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entlty(|es), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
. Parent Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or :

(b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Il. The Parent and Indian Subsidiaries have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: '

(a) directly or |nd|rect|y lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the:
'Fundmg Party (Ultimate-Beneficiaries) or

(b) prowde any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneﬂcnarles

(vii). The Hdlding Company and its Indian Subsidiaries do not have any transactions with struck off companies.

(viii) fhe Holding Company and its Indian Subsidiaries have complied with the requirement with respecf to number of layers as
prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules,
2017. ' :
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Note 49 Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified to confirm to current year's classification wherever necessary. -

Note 50 All figures are in Rupees Crores. Figures shown as zero (0) are below the rounding off norm adopted by the Parent Company.

Note 51 Provision for Income taxes has been estimated by the Group based upon returns filed, assessments so far completed and subject to expected relief in appeals.

As per our report of even date

For ].C. Bhalla & Co.
Firm Registration Number 001111N

Chartered Accountants

Akhil Bhalla

Partner

Membership Number : 505002
Place: New Delhi

Datedzsw ;)8 % 20&&

\

On behalf of Board of Directors

\ .
Kuldip Singh Dhingra Gurbachan Singh Dhingra
Director Director
Din-00048406 . Din-00048465




U.K. PAINTS (INDIA) PVT LTD
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

 (All amounts in T crores, unless otherwise stated)

1.  Corporate Operations

U K Paints (India) Pvt. Limited ('UKIP’ or ‘the Parent Company ‘or ‘the Company ‘) was
incorporated in India on 5t of June 1979 as a Private Limited Company registered under
The Companies Act 1956 and was converted in Public Limited Company as-on 25th October
2012 and re-converted into Private Limited Company on 29t May,2015. The main activity
of the Holding Company is manufacturing of Paint containers and Job work on paints. UK
Paints (India) Pvt. Limited (the “Holding Company’) is a private limited company with its
subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures (collectively referred to as the ‘Group’).

2. ~ Significant Accounting Policies
- 2.1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2022

" have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements
of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule
III), as applicable to the consolidated financial statements.

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair values
(refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements are presented in INR and all values are
rounded to the nearest of crores, except when otherwise indicated. These consolidated
financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied ex‘cept where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hithertd in use.

2.2 Basis of Consolidation

-The consolidated Ind AS financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2022. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically,
the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee) ,

~Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

>
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Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To
support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in .
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group'’s voting rlghts and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dlspersxon
of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

VVvyYYy

~

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes:to one or more of the three elements of control.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group. obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income, and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements from the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated Ind AS financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of
the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements for like transactions anid events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in
preparmg the consolidated Ind AS financial statements to ensure conformity with the
group’s accounting policies. :

Consolidation Process:

Consolidated financial statements relate to U K Paints (India) Private Limited, the
Parent Company and its subsidiaries (the Group). The consolidated financial statements
are in conformity with the Accounting Standard - 110 on Consolidated Financial
Statements as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 .
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other
relevant Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and are prepared as set out below:

i.  Combine like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, equity, and cash flow
of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses
of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised
in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

ii. Offset (eﬁminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s portion of equity of each
subsidiary. Business combination policy explains how to account for any related
goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses
resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate
an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
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Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the

- elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

iv.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by adopting uniform

accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances

(except as disclosed under note 39 and 40) and are presented to the extent required
and possible, in the same manner as the Parent Company’s separate financial
statements.

The translation of the functional currencies into Indian Rupees (functional and
presentation currency) of foreign subsidiaries is performed for assets and liabilities
using closing exchange rates at the Balance Sheet date, for revenues, costs, and
expenses using average rates prevailing during the period. The resultant exchange
difference arising out of such transactions is recognized as part of Other
Comprehensive Income as Foreign Currency Translation Reserve by the Parent

- Company until the disposal of Investment.

vi.

Vii.

viii.

ix.

The excess of cost to the Parent Company of its investment in the subsidiaries over
the Parent’s portion of equity of the subsidiaries at the dates they became
subsidiaries is recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill.

Joint Ventures are entities over which the Group has joint control along with third
parties. Investments in Joint Ventures are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. The investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount

'is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of proflt or loss of the

investee after the acqulsmon date.

Associates are entities over which the Group exercises significant influence.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting,.
The investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or-decreased to recognise the investor’s share of proflt or loss of the investee after
the acquisition date.

A parent shall present non-controlling interests in the consolidated balance sheet
within equity, separately from the equity of the owners of the parent.

An entity shall attribute the profit or loss and each ‘cofnponent of other

comprehensive income (OCI) to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All

~ intra-group assets arid liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating

to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consohdauon

Changes in the proportion held by non-controlling interests h

When the proportion of the equity held by non-controlling interest changes, an
entity shall adjust the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling



U.K. PAINTS (INDIA) PVT LTD
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in ‘crores, unless otherwise stated)

interests to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. The entity
* shall recognize directly in equity any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paxd :
or received, and attribute it to the owners of the parent.

3.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Current and Non-Current classification

~ The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: ,
> Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle

> I—?eld primarily for the purpose of trading

> Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reportmg period, or

> Cash or cash équivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle

~ a liability for at least twelve months after the reportmg period

All other assets are classmed as non-current.

A liability is current when:

: It is expected to be settled in normal operatmg cycle
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

‘There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

VVVYY

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The group has identified twelve months
as its operating cycle.

b) Foreign Currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates ('the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Group’s functional and
presentation currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a
foreign operation the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that
arises from using this method.

‘The functional currency of Berger Paints India Ltd (Subsidiary), Citland Commercial Credits .
Ltd (Subsidiary), Olly Investment Private Ltd. (Subsidiary), Jolly Investments Private Ltd.
(Subsidiary), kanwar Properties Private Ltd. (Subsidiary), Scorpio research and Consultants
LLP (subsidiary), Wang Investments and Finance Ltd. (Subsidiary), Flex Properties Private Ltd.
(Subsidiary), Kap Company General Private Ltd. (Associate), KSD Buildwell Private Ltd.
(Associate), Wisdom Colonizer Private Ltd. (Associate), Efficient Buildcon Private Ltd.
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(Associate), Advantage Housing Private Ltd. (Associate), Bigg Investment and Finance Private
Ltd. (Associate) is Indian rupee. The functional currency of other subsidiaries including step
down subsidiaries and step-down joint venture and associates included within the Group are
the respective local currencies. !

" Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in by the respective companies
at spot rates at the functional currency spot rate (i.e., INR) at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

" currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign
currencies and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI, or profit or loss
are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their Statements of Profit and
Loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For
practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, -
if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The
exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCL On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that forelgn operanon
is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Fair Value Measurement

The group measures fmanc1al instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
alue measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
ansfer the liability takes place either: :

a) Inthe prmc1pal market for the asset or liability, or
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most. advantageous market for the asset
or liability.
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* The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liabiiity is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assét considers a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumsfances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on

the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Levell — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in actlve markets for identical assets

or 11ab111t1es ,
b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

c) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is 51gmf1cant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the.Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level.
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period. ‘

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or 11ab111ty and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. '

d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities during and at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
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'Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
~and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in'value.

f) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are carried at cost of
acquisition, on current cost basis less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment, if any. Cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost includes the cost
of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Machinery spares which can
" be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose use is expected to be
irregular are capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of the principal item of the
relevant assets. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. Refer to note 28 regarding significant accounting judgements, estimates
and assumptions and provisions for further information. about the recorded
decommissioning provision.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided on Written down value method over the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment as estimated by management in case of the Parent
Company. Pursuant to Notification of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013
depreciation is provided pro rata basis on written down value method at the rates
determined based on estimated useful lives of property, plant, and equipment where
‘applicable, prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

However, two of the subsidiary companies i.e., Berger Paints India Limited, and Berger
Paints Bangladesh Limited provides depreciation on Straight Line Method (SLM) (for
guantum involved refer note 39) based on useful life of assets given in Schedule II of the
& Nompanies Act, 2013 and BAS -16 (for Berger Paints Bangladesh Ltd.) except in case of
lowing fixed assets where technical evaluation has been carried out, details of which
e as follows: ' '

¢ Plant and Machinery - 3 years to 21 05 years.

e Motor Vehicles - 6.67 years
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. 'i‘inting Machines - based on estimated useful life of 60 months.
¢ No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
. appropriate. '

g) Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognized only when future economic benefits arising out of the
assets flow to the enterprise and are amortised over their useful life ranging from 3 to 5
years. Intangible assets acquired-separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets-are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible
assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized, and are charged to
-Statement of Profitand Loss for the year during which such expenditure is incurred.

Gain and Losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. -

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at
their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of .the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and
any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still
¢ results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate

O\onsideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity
4s capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity
fecognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without rounng the same
through OCL :




U.K. PAINTS (INDIA) PVT LTD
. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in T crores, unless otherwise stated)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less-any accumulated unpalrment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
“whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
‘amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carryinig amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of a CGU to which goodwill is allocated, the goodwill associated with the
disposed CGU is included in the carrying amount of the’ CGU when determiining the
gain or loss on disposal.

h) Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control
are similar to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries. -

The Group’s investments in its joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost.-
The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s
share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the
joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for
impairment individually.

The Statement of Profit and Loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations
of the joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the
Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in

the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the joint venture are ehmmated to the extent of the

an entity’s share of losses of a joint venture equal or exceeds its interest in the joint
venture (which includes any long-term interest that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share
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of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
‘venture. If the joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising
its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the
face of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those

~of the Group. After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it
is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its joint venture. At
each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the
investment in the joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group

' calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit
of a joint venture’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
.may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or cash- generating units
(CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount

* of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount. '

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are considered, if available. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. :

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer
exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the assets or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciai:ion, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the
eversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
Ire- tested for impairment annually at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when
ircumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
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j) Inventories _ .

Finished goods and Work-m—process are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net
realizable value. Cost of inventories constitutes direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Raw materials, components, stores, and spares are valued at lower of cost and estimated
net realizable value. Cost is determined on first-in-first out basis by the Parent Company
and on weighted average method by its subsidiary company viz. Berger paints India
limited, for quantum involved refer note'40. However, materials and other items held for.
use in the productlon of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in Wthh they will be incorporated are expected to be sold are at or above cost.

Provision is recognised for damaged, defective, or obsolete stocks where necessary.

Traded: goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. -

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k) Revenue from contract with customer and Other Income

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or

services are transferred to the customer at an amount. that reflects the consideration to

. which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The

. Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements

~ because it typically controls the goods or. services before transferring them to the.
customer.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The normal credit term
is 30 to 90 days upon delivery. The revenue is based on the consideration defined in the
contract with a customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume
rebates, rights to return or other contractual reductions. As the period between the date
on which the Group transfers the promised goods to the customer and the date on which
the customer pays for these goods is generally one year or less, no financing components
are considered. The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract
that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price
needs to be allocated

he Group provides volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of products’ -
urchased by the customers during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the
contract. Generally, rebates are offset against the amounts payable by the customer. To
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estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Group applies’
the expected value method. .

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified .
period. The Group uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not
be returned because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to

- which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS on constraining estimates
of variable consideration to are also applied to determine the amount of varxable
comlderauon that can be included in the transaction price.

Revenue from Combined Contrqcts

Revenue from contracts with customers for combined output comprising of goods and
services for which consideration receivable by the Group is determined based on surface
area painted is recognised at a point of time when such combined output is delivered to
customers’ satisfaction as per agreed milestones and customers acknowledge their
obligation to pay for such output in accordance with terms and condition of underlying
contracts. Obligations under each milestone are performed over short durations of not
more than a month.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section “Financial
instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement”.

Income from services ‘
Revenue from job-work contracts are recognized as and when services are rendered.

Interest income recognised under Amortized cost

Interest Income is recognised on a time proportion basis conmdermg the amount
outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head
‘Other Income” in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Dividend Income A ,
Dividend is recognized in profit or loss only when right to receive payment ‘is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the group and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

1) Government Grants

Government grants and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance
hat the Group will comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants/ subsidy
[ lvill be received.
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When the grant or subsidy from the Government relates to revenue, it is deducted from

. the related expense on a systemaﬁc basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the
period necessary to match them with the related costs, which they.are intended to
compensate. When the grants relate to an asset, it is either recognised as income in equal
amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are
recorded at fair value amounts and released to Statement of Profit and Loss over the

. expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset
i.e, by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistarice are provided by -
governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable
market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is regarded as a government grant. The
loan or-assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government
grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the
proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accountmg policy
applicable to financial liabilities.

m) Employee Benefits

(i) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected
to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the undiscounted
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations
Other long-term employee benefits include earned leaves.

.Earned leaves .
The liabilities for earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve .
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

" This is therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting
period using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting ‘period. The benefits are discounted
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms

" approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements because of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
profit & loss. The obligations are presented as provisions in the balance sheet.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are retirement benefit plans under which the Group pays
fixed contributions to separate entities (funds) or financial institutions or state
- managed benefit schemes. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The defined contributions plans are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
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- as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is

(iv)

available.

. * Provident Fund Plan & Employee Pension Scheme:

Contributions in respect of Employees of subsidiary company (Berger Paints India
limited) who are not covered by subsidiary Company’s Employees Provident .
Fund Trust and in respect of other employees, are made to the Fund administered
by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner as per the provisions of
Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and are
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as and when services are rendered by
employees.

The respective companies has no obligation other than the contribution payable to
the Regional Provident Fund. The respective companies make monthly
contributions at prescribed rates towards Employees’ Provident Fund/
Employees’ Pension Scheme to a Fund administered and managed by the
Government of India. .

* Employee State Insurance
The respective companies make prescribed monthly contributions towards
Employees’ State Insurance Scheme.

* Superannuation :
Contribution made to Superannuation Fund for certain of employees of the group
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when services are
rendered by employees. The Group has no liability for future Superannuatlon
Fund benefits other than its contribution.

Defined Benefit Plan .

Gratuity

Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to
Gratuity as per the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The costs of
providing benefits under this plan are determined based on actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at each year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately recognized in retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not re-classified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods. Retirement Gratuity for employees of the subsidiary
company viz. Berger paints India Ltd is funded through a scheme of Life Insurance
Corporation of India. '

Provident Fund .

In respect of the Employees of Berger paints India Itd, who are covered by
Company’s Employee Provident Fund Trust, contributions' to the Employees
Provident Fund Trust (administered by the Company as per the provisions of
Employees’ Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 1952) are made in accordance
with the fund rules. The interest rate payable to the beneficiaries every year is being
notified by the Government. In the case of contribution to the Trust, the Company"
has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the
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investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate and recognizes such
obligation, if any, determmed based on an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet
date, as an expense.

n) Leases

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (”MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing

“lease standard, Ind AS 17 leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases for
both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model

- for lessees. The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” with effect from April 1, 2019,
applied to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective
method, using the cumulative effect method except in case of Berger paints which has
applied Ind AS 116 retrospectively. Impact of the same has been taken in opening equity
as on 1st April 2019 and hence the comparative information is not restated.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of
a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option
is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a
lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any
options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease
term, the Group considers factors.such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the
importance of the underlying asset to group operations considering the location of the
underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future
periods is reassessed to ensuré that the lease term reflects the current economic
circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the group has
concluded that no changes are required to lease period relatmg to the existing lease
contracts.

Where the Group is the lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:
(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all
of the economic benef1ts from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii)
the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset
(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low: value leases, the Group recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before
the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease hab1ht1es includes these options when it
is certain that they will be exercised. .

The right—of—use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use
assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate -that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs. '

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the

- future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing
rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease Liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability has been presented under Other Financial Liabilities and ROU asset have
- been presented under Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet and lease '
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Where the Group is the lessor : - '

~ Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating
lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they

_ are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the Group to thé lessee. Amounts due from lessees under
finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases.. .
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate
of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
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0) Forward Currency Contracts

The Subsidiary Company (Berger Paints India Ltd) uses forward currency contracts to
hedge its foreign currency risks. Such forward currency contracts are initially measured

at fair value on the date on which a forward currency contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Forward currency contracts are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Changes in the fair value of forward contracts are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as they arise.

p) Research and Development

Research'is original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining
new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding. Expenditure incurred on
research of an internal project is recognised as an expense.in Statement of Profit and.
Loss when it is incurred.

Development is the application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or

design to produce new or substantially improved materials, devices, products,

processes, systems, or services before the start of commercial production or use. An

intangible asset arising from development is recognised if, and only if, the following

criteria are met:

a. itis technically feasible to complete the mtang1ble asset so that it will be available

for use or sale.

the Group intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

the Group has ability to use or sell the intangible asset. !

d: the Group can demonstrate how the intangible asset will generate probable future

* economic benefits.

e. the Group has adequate technical, financial, and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset. '

f. the Group has ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

o o

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation of the asset begins. when development is complete, and the asset is

~ available for use. Itis amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation
expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms
part of carrying value of another asset. -

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

q) Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current Income Tax
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Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in
the respective tax jurisdictions where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substanuvely enacted, at the
reporting date.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
_situations in. which applicable tax regulations are sub)ect to mterpretahon and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial

statements at the reporting date. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business

combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor
" taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax hablhty is
settled. ‘

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize
those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognized
‘deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable proflts will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right

' to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate

to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where

the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net,
“basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is.recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or du'ectly in equity,
respectively. :

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income
and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing
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differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In the situations where the Group is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act,.
1961 enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it
operates, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences
which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Group’s gross total income
is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of
timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in
which the timing differences originate. However, the Group restricts recognition of -
deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax

 assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the timing differences which
originate first are considered to reverse first. '

MAT credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the
year, in which the Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) Credit becomes eligible to be
recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained the guidancé
note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is credited
by way of credit to the profit & loss account and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The
Group revises the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount
of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the
effect that the Group will pay normal tax during the specified period.

" Goods and Service tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Service tax paid,
except: ‘ :

» When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

» When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority i is included
as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

r) Provisions and Contingencies'

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) because of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in
\ the statement of profit and loss. .

Jif the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
/ current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
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When discounting is used the increase in the prov151on due to the passage of t1me is
recognised as a finance cost.

The Group records a provision for decomrmssmmng costs for its certain
manufacturing facilities. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of
expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised
as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current
pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The
unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are
reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs
or in the discount rate apphed are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.’

If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract
is recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for
an onerous contract is established, the Group recognises any 1mpa1rment loss that
has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs
that the Group cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the
contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or
penalties arlsmg from failure to fulfil it.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence

. will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future’

events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized

-because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the consolidated financial statements.

- s) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs include interest; amortlsahon of ancillary costs incurred and exchange

differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as

an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Discount on Commercial papers is amortised over

the tenor of the underlying instrument. Borrowing Costs allocated to and utilised for
. qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to

construction / development of the qualifying asset up to the date the asset is ready for

its intended use is added to the cost of the assets. Capitalization of Borrowing Costs is
. suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods
when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.
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Basic Earnmgs per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net proﬁt
or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the perlod is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity : shares.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for
all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

" u) FinancialInstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and '
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

A. Financial Assets
ii) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transactxon
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

iii) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two
categories: "

a. Debt instruments at amortised cost
b. - Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
* income FVTOCI .

Debt instruments at amortised cost other than derivative contracts

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the followmg .
conditions are met:
o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
for collecting contractual cash flows, and
o Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After 1mt1al measurement, such fmancxal assets are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortlsatlon is included in
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.finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and
other receivables. -

Equity investment

All equlty investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value other
than equity investments measured at deemed cost on first time adoption of Ind
AS. Equity instruments which are held for trading-are classified as at FVTPL.
For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either
as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the
OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and
Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. ' ,
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair
value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

iv) De-reco ghitioh

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
e the Group has transferred substannally all the risks and rewards of the
asset

v) Impairment of f1nanc1al assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected CI'EdIt loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
-allowance on Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. ECL is the difference
‘between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with -
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive, discounted
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at the original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity is requlred to
consider:
-e All contractual terms of the financial instrumeént (mcludmg prepayment,
N extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial -
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument
e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms)

‘As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision
" matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over tlje expected life of
the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
- reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is

recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This

amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an
allowance, ‘i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until
the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce impair_rhent
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines
financial instruments based on shared credit risk. characteristics with the:
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases.in credit risk to be identified on a tlmely basis.

B. Financial Liabilities

i). Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings net of directly attributable transaction costs. -
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
_borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and
derivative financial instruments. 4

ii). Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial habllltles depends on their classﬁlcatxon, as
described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss »
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives,
 financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
" initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are

classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of .
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments: entered by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are re;:ognisecl in the profitor loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recogmhon at fair value through
profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized

*in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However,
the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recogmsed in the statement of profit-
or loss.

Loans and borrowings :

After initial recogmuon, mterest-bearmg loans and borrowmgs are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

- Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
~acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee. contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that .

‘require a payment to be made to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs
because the specified borrower fails 'to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a loan agreement. Financial guarantee contracts
are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the
liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recogmsed less
cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition A
A financial liability is derecogmsed when the obhgatlon under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expires. When ‘an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially. modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
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recogmtlon of a new liability. The dlfference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profitand loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is
" reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to

offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,

to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

v) Employees Stock Option |

Stock options are granted to the employees under the stock option scheme. The cost of
‘stock options granted to the employees (equity-settled awards) of the subsidiary
Company is the difference between fair value of equity instruments granted and the
price at which options may be exercised by concerned employees. For each stock option,
the measurement of fair value is performed on the grant date. The grant date is the date
on which the subsidiary Company and the employees agree to the stock.option scheme.
The fair value so determined is revised only if the stock option scheme is modified in a

manner that is beneficial to the employees.

Aforesaid cost of stock options is recognised, together with a corresponding ihcrease in
Employee Stock Options outstanding account in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/ or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the .
subsidiary Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and is recognised in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of
outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
- diluted earnings per share.
If the options vests in instalments (i.e., the options vest pro rata over the service period),
then each instalment is treated as a separate share option grant because each instalment -
has a different vesting period. -

. w) Operating Segments

The Parent Company has identified two operating segments viz manufacturing of
paints containers and job work on paints. AS per Ind AS -108, due to similar nature of
products, production process, customer types etc. the two operating segments have .
been aggregated as single operating segment of ‘Paint containers and allied Products &
services ‘during the year. The Company operates within India and does not have
operations in‘economic environment with different risk and returns. As the business
activity falls within a single operating segment of manufacturing of “Paint containers
and allied products & services “and the sales are within India only, the financial
statement of the Parent Company are reflective of the information required by Ind AS
108 “Operating Segments”. ‘
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The Business process and Risk Management Committee, approved by the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee of the subsidiary company (Berger Paints India 1td)
performs the function of allotment of resources and assessment of performance.
Considering the level of activities performed, frequency of their meetings and level of
finality of their decisions, it has identified that Chief Operating Decision Maker function
is being performed by the Business Process and Risk Management Committee. The
financial information presented to the Business process and Risk Management
Committee in the context of results and for the purposes of approving the annual
operating plan is on a consolidated basis for various products of the Group (Berger
paints India Itd & its subsidiaries). As the Group’s business activity falls within a single
business segment viz. ‘Paints’ and the sales substantially being in the domestic market,
the financial statements are reflective of the information required by Ind AS 108

“Operating Segments”. '

x) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(1) New and amended standards
Covid -19-Related Rent Concessions

MCA “issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
béyond 30 June 2021 to update the condition for lessees to apply the relief to a
reduction in lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June
2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021. In case a lessee has not yet approved the financial statements for issue before the
issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2020. These amendments had no material impact on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

Amelidment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition -of “Recoverable amount” is amended such that the words “the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use” are replaced with “higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”. The consequential
amendments are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28..These amendments
had no material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard.
Therefore, this does not form part of a set of standards pronounced by the standard-
setters. While the Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating
the standards, it has relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop
consistent accounting policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where
there is choice of accounting policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret
the Standards.
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‘The amendments-made in following standards -due to Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting under Ind AS includes amendment of the footnote to the definition
of an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added
for definition of liability i.e., definition of liability is not revised on account of revision
of definition in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contmgent Assets etc. The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind
. AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide notification dated June
18, 2021, applicable for annual . penods ‘beginning on or. after April 1, 2021.
Accordmgly, the Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

These amendments had no 1mpact on the standalone ﬁnanmal statements of the
Company.

Standards notified but not yet effective

" There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, up to the date of
1issuance of the Company’s financial statements




